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INTRODUCTION

The Board of Directors hereby submits the report and accounts of Assuranceforeningen Gard - gjensidig - (the “Association”) for the 2024 financial 
year, covering the period from 1 January to 31 December 2024. This is the Association’s 117th year of business.

In the opinion of the Board of Directors this report and accounts for the period to 31 December 2024 gives a true and fair view of the Association’s 
financial position and result of its operations. 

Statutory requirements with regard to solvency and capital are complied with. 

Beyond what has been dealt with in this report, and the risks and uncertainties the marine insurance industry in general are faced with, the Board of 
Directors does not consider there to be any special risks or uncertainties connected to the business activities of the Association.

The Associations is a part of the Gard group (the “Group”) where Gard P. & I. (Bermuda) Ltd. is the ultimate owner. 

THE ASSOCIATION - MEMBERSHIP RIGHTS

The Association is a Norwegian mutual insurance association founded in Arendal in 1907. The Association provides Protection and Indemnity 
(“P&I”) insurance and related insurance products to its members being owners, operators, charterers or other direct insurers of ships entered in the 
Association. As a mutual insurance association, its members own the Association. There are no external capital owners.

The Members of the Association are also Members of Gard P. & I. (Bermuda) Ltd. and vice versa. The major part of the two associations’ combined 
portfolio of direct business is underwritten by Gard P. & I. (Bermuda) Ltd. The Association is primarily used as a vehicle for a smaller proportion of 
the combined P&I portfolio, which is primarily direct P&I business where an EU/EEA based insurer is required in order to comply with governing EU 
regulations regarding to cross border activities.

In as much as Gard P. & I. (Bermuda) Ltd. has the right to exercise membership rights in the reinsured portfolio, it controls the voting rights in the 
Association. This is the legal basis for consolidating the two associations’ accounts pursuant to the International Financial Reporting Standard 10 
Consolidated Financial Statements.

THE OPERATION IN GENERAL

P&I insurance

Protection and Indemnity (“P&I”) insurance is the name of the insurance covering the shipowner’s liability towards a third party. The insurance 
covers both liability for property damage and personal injuries arisen in connection with the operation of the insured ship. 

Traditional P&I insurance is currently offered by 12 clubs covering about 90 percent of the world’s merchant fleet. 

These 12 clubs, or mutual insurance associations, have formed an organisation called the International Group of P&I Clubs (the “IG”). One of the 
important functions of IG is to co-ordinate the clubs collective purchase of market reinsurances. This is done within the framework of the Pooling 
Agreement. The latter contains three main elements. The first is the claims sharing between the parties to the agreement. The second is the 
provisions dealing with collective purchase of market reinsurances covering liabilities in excess of the upper limit of the Pool. The third is the 
provisions governing a claim exceeding the limit of the IG clubs collective market reinsurance contract, a so-called overspill claim.

The Association’s branch office in Tokyo

The Association has a branch office in Tokyo. The branch was established when the Association was granted a licence from the Japanese Ministry 
of Finance to insure vessels flying Japanese flag. 

The Association’s branch office in the Finland

The Association has a branch office in Finland. The branch is established in Finland as a branch of an Overseas Firm in accordance with the EU 
rules for Free Movement of Services.

The Association’s branch office in Hong Kong

The Association has a branch office in Hong Kong. The branch office is authorized by IA (The Insurance Authority of Hong Kong) to carry out 
business in and from Hong Kong.

The Association’s branch office in the United Kingdom

The Association has a branch office in the United Kingdom. The branch is established in the United Kingdom as a branch of an Overseas Firm 
under supervision by PRA (The Prudential Regulation Authority of United Kingdom). 

Gard AS - the Association’s insurance agent

The Association has entered into an agency agreement with Gard AS being a Norwegian registered insurance intermediary. Gard AS is registered 
with Finanstilsynet (The Norwegian Financial Supervisory Authority) as the agent of the Association. All underwriting and claims handling services 
offered by the Association are performed by Gard AS, or its subsidiaries abroad as insurance intermediaries on the basis of an agency agreement.
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Personnel and organisation

As a result of the appointment of Gard AS as the agent of the Association there are at the end of the only 15 persons directly employed by the 
Association. These persons include, inter alia, the Managing Director, the Legal Director (Company Secretary) and the Accounting Manager.

In 2024 the level of absence due to sickness has been below the corresponding average in the insurance industry. The total number of days of 
absence due to sickness corresponded to a percentage of 0.4 against 4.5 percent for the insurance industry in general. The organisation is focusing 
on preventing occupational injuries as a result of long-time use of PCs and other office equipment. There have been no injuries or accidents in 
connection with the operations. 

The Association seeks to promote gender equality, ensure equal opportunities and rights, and to prevent discrimination due to ethnicity, national 
origin, descent, skin color, language, religion and faith. 

The working environment in the Association has in the period to 31 December 2024 been good. 

Directors’ and Officers’ liability insurance

There is a Directors and Officers’ liability insurance in place covering all directors and officers of the Association. The cover applies worldwide and 
includes, but are not limited to, the following: Management liability; Pre-Claim Inquiry Costs; and Certain legal fees/costs. The limit of the insurance 
is USD 30 million in the aggregate including all claims or losses.

Internal control

Pursuant to regulations determined by the Norwegian Financial Supervisory Authority the Association has established an internal control system. In 
accordance with the said regulations, a report about the internal auditor’s findings is submitted to the Audit Committee established on a group basis 
as set out below as well as the Board of Directors. In line with the Solvency II regime a Compliance Officer function was established with effect from 
1 January 2015. The Compliance Officer is part of the risk assessment and internal control system and shall ensure compliance with governing 
laws, regulation and administrative provisions.

Pursuant to the Norwegian Finance Institutions Act of 2015 no. 17, Section 8-18, the Association shall have an Audit Committee. However, the 
Association has been granted dispensation from the requirement to have an Audit Committee by the Norwegian Financial Supervisory Authority. The 
exemption is made on the basis that the parent company of the Association, Gard P. & I. (Bermuda) Ltd., has an Audit Committee overseeing the 
activities of the Group on a consolidated basis, including the activities of the Association. The decision by the authorities is made on the basis that 
the composition of the Audit Committee of Gard P. & I. (Bermuda) Ltd. is in line with the requirements of Norwegian legislation both in relation to its 
composition as well as responsibility to perform certain tasks.

Safety at sea

The Association is participating in the activities organised under the umbrella of the International Group with a view to review possible measures to 
be taken by insurers for the purposes of improving safety at sea. The Norwegian Act on Ship Safety, which entered into force on 1 July 2007 allows 
exchange of information between insurers regarding the technical condition of vessels. The Association believes that this is an important step for the 
purposes of improving the safety at sea.

Gard’s double materiality assessment 

The Corporate Sustainability Reporting Directive (CSRD) will be a mandatory requirement for Gard's annual report in 2026, covering activities from 
2025. The directive replaces the non-financial reporting directive and regulates the reporting on both the European Sustainability Reporting 
Standards (ESRS) and the EU taxonomy. To ensure compliance, we have laid the necessary groundwork to meet these requirements. 

In 2024, we conducted a double materiality assessment (DMA) involving a range of internal experts. The process builds upon and supplements the 
outcomes of the 2023 stakeholder dialogue which engaged a wide range of internal and external stakeholders. 

In line with the implementation guidelines provided by the European Financial Reporting Advisory Group (EFRAG), we held a series of workshops 
that required stakeholders (internal experts) to identify and rate various sustainability topics based on their importance to Gard’s business success 
(financial materiality) and their importance to the wider society (impact materiality). This exercise resulted in the identification of six material topics 
that are of significant relevance to Gard. These topics cover climate change, environment, social, and governance matters. 

Through this process we have identified the impacts Gard can have on the environment and society, not only through our own operations but also 
through the direct and indirect business relationships across our value chain. Similar assessments have been made to identify the sustainability-
related risks and opportunities we are exposed to. 

Environmental impact

Climate change

Our positive impacts reflect the crucial role that Gard and the marine insurance industry can play in enabling the green transition. By providing 
insurance cover to risks associated with new technologies, sharing experience, preventing losses and supporting industry-wide technology 
adoption, we help to enable positive change and reduce the risks associated with the shift.  

Our negative impacts reflect broader challenges faced by the shipping industry, primarily due to the heavy reliance on fossil-based fuels, leading to 
continued GHG emissions. We also provide insurance to companies engaged in oil and gas extraction, as well as vessels transporting fossil-based 
cargo. As we progress in our climate transition journey, we will continue to prioritize a close dialogue with our Members and clients to support their 
decarbonization efforts. 
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In 2024, we took several actions to address material climate-related impacts. Cross-functional “Green Transition Competency Groups” were 
established to enhance mapping of risks and opportunities associated with alternative fuels, offshore renewable energy and battery-related fires. We 
also contributed to committees and working groups within the International Group of P&I clubs (the IG) and particularly raised the need to close 
gaps in international liability and compensation regimes governing the use of alternative fuels. We continue to maintain our partnerships with key 
organizations such as the Global Centre for Maritime Decarbonisation and the Mærsk Mc-Kinney Møller Center for Zero Carbon Shipping as well as 
other institutions and initiatives working to promote low-carbon solutions. 

We disclose the emissions of our insured hull and machinery (H&M) portfolio according to the Poseidon Principles for Marine Insurance (PPMI) 
methodology and continuously engage with our Members and clients to support them as they decarbonise. In 2024, we issued our third climate 
alignment score disclosing the carbon intensity of our H&M portfolio for the 2023 policy year. The reporting methodology has been modified since 
the last year to align with the revised IMO GHG Strategy adopted in July 2023.  Additionally, PPMI now allows using modelled emissions data 
instead of client-reported data. This change allows us to capture a larger share of our portfolio, including vessels where neither Gard nor other PPMI 
signatories have claims lead. 

On the energy side, Gard has significantly increased its share and lead capacity within the renewable energy sector. The expansion was achieved 
through our acquisition of Codan’s Marine & Energy portfolio, which to a large degree consists of offshore wind projects.

Pollution 

Sustainable claims handling and our approach to ship recycling are areas where we see Gard brings material positive impacts, while emerging and 
new forms of pollution such as plastic nurdle spills are negative impacts that require further attention.  

In 2024, we collaborated with the International Tanker Owners Pollution Federation Limited (ITOPF) and others to develop environmental, social, 
and governance (ESG) reports for large casualties, further refining the methodology to document ESG risks during a casualty response and lessons 
learnt. Furthermore, we have followed up with authorities and other stakeholders involved in the restoration efforts following the oil spill from the 
Marco Polo incident in 2023. During the year we also published several loss prevention articles and alerts related to pollution. 

Additionally, we have identified potential pollution risks and mitigation opportunities through our cross-functional “Green Transition Competency 
Groups”, especially related to alternative fuels and battery fires. We also worked with several industry bodies such as the International Union of 
Marine Insurance (IUMI) to raise awareness of the potential barriers for alternative fuels in international compensation and liability regimes and how 
these can be solved.

Biodiversity and ecosystems

Gard has long been committed to protecting marine biodiversity by reducing and preventing pollution.  Our efforts include restoring ecosystems 
affected by pollution incidents, screening insured fishing vessels for Illegal, Unreported, and Unregulated (IUU) activities, and providing alerts and 
insights to our Members and Clients related to marine biodiversity. 

As a result of the 2024 DMA process, impacts related to the protection of marine biodiversity have been identified and assessed as material. Hence, 
Gard is explicitly stating that biodiversity is a material topic, highlighting our increased commitment as an organisation to focus further on this issue. 
While our 2024 Double Materiality Assessment provided an initial indication, we recognize the need to better understand and analyse potential 
nature-related impacts, dependencies, risks, and opportunities across our entire value chain. 

Social impact

Own Workforce

The findings from our DMA indicate that the key topics significant for Gard’s workforce are working conditions, equal treatment and opportunities, 
and personal data protection. 

Gard’s approach to managing these material impacts is anchored in our core values, a dedication to diversity and inclusion, and a focus on 
enhancing the wellbeing of our employees. Through this approach, we aim to create a supportive and empowering environment where every 
individual can contribute to our shared success. 

In 2024, in compliance with the Norwegian Transparency Act, Gard completed a detailed evaluation of its own operations conducted by an external 
assessment provider, Ecovadis. The evaluation covered 21 sustainability criteria, organised into four key themes: Labor and Human Rights, 
Environment, Ethics, and Sustainable Procurement. The assessment, which included analysis of Gard’s policies, actions, and reporting on key 
performance indicators, provided valuable insights into our sustainability efforts across these areas.

Based on the assessment, Gard maintained its Ecovadis gold rating for the third consecutive year with an improved overall score. Notably, this 
year’s assessment highlighted significant progress, particularly in the Labor and Human Rights category where we achieved an increase in our 
score. This improvement can be attributed to the introduction of additional measures, such as the continuous improvement of the employee 
development program and comprehensive reporting on labor and human rights issues such as data on diversity, pay gaps, and health and safety. 

In addition, as a reflection of our commitment to achieving gender balance, we have implemented a recruitment strategy that ensures both female 
and male candidates are represented in the final round for all leadership positions and reaffirmed our commitment to diversity and inclusion by 
signing the WISTA 40 by 30 pledge. 

Workers in the value chain

Our social responsibility extends beyond our operations to include the workers in our value chain. As the world’s leading marine insurer, we rely on 
the services of correspondents, surveyors, experts, lawyers, wreck salvors, and other highly skilled and competent professionals in the maritime 
industry. Our day-to-day business operations depend on the goods, products, corporate, and site services of our suppliers such as IT, travel 
services, cleaning services, construction and maintenance and energy utilities. In the downstream part of our operations, we recognize that 
seafarers are particularly exposed to occupational hazards and sometimes extreme working conditions.   
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In other words, our operations impact the lives of workers and because of this, we strive to uphold the highest ethical standards and responsible 
business practices concerning workers in our value chain.  

Our 2024 DMA process identified material impacts relating to working conditions affecting the workers in both our upstream and downstream part of 
the value chain. 

Upstream part of our value chain 

To address the material impacts on working conditions, Gard's human rights due diligence process is intended to identify, prevent, and mitigate 
potential human rights impacts within our supply chains. This process is established to comply with the requirements of the Norwegian 
Transparency Act and follows the United Nations Guiding Principles on Business and Human Rights and the OECD Guidelines for Multinational 
Enterprises. 

For the assessment process, we have applied objective factors to identify those suppliers and business partners that potentially have a higher risk 
of causing adverse impacts on human rights and decent working conditions. 

The findings indicate improvements for the majority (68%) of the assessed operational expense (OPEX) suppliers year on year, and the total score 
of Gard’s assessed OPEX suppliers is significantly higher than the industry average, according to Ecovadis.

Based on the assessment results by Ecovadis, common improvement areas among some of the OPEX suppliers are documentation for policies, 
organizational practices and actions, as well as reporting on key performance indicators. We believe that proper documentation of policies and 
procedures is critical to safeguarding workers’ rights and ensuring adherence to human rights principles and standards. Inconclusive documentation 
or lack thereof can create risks, potentially allowing human rights issues to either arise or remain unaddressed. Thus, both Procurement and 
relevant business units are following up and working closely with the selected suppliers to work on their corrective action plans aimed at addressing 
these gaps.   

For our professional external service providers or Claims’ ESPs, some of our interviews with ESPs revealed employment practices without clear 
contractual support but which align with local customs and traditions, without violating human rights and decent working conditions. In these 
instances, we took the opportunity to suggest clearer contract frameworks for the employees, to ensure continued compliance and enhanced safety 
for the workers In the spirit of ongoing due diligence, all the ESPs that were assessed in 2023 were contacted also in 2024 and invited to share their 
CSR progress so far. Some of them really took onboard Gard's suggestions and showed important improvement in the matter of just a year.

Generally, our suppliers and business partners were all receptive to a dialogue on human rights and working conditions and the process increased 
our mutual awareness of the need for increased transparency in our own operations and supply chains. 

Downstream part of our value chain 

Although seafarers are not directly impacted by our operations, we recognize their fundamental role in our value chain, and we acknowledge that 
the challenging and demanding nature of their work makes them particularly vulnerable to human rights risks. Moreover, as a globally leading 
marine insurer, we believe we can make a difference in supporting their rights. 

Throughout the year, we have therefore organized a series of webinars about the critical human rights issues faced by seafarers. These webinars 
have centered on crew health and safety as well as crew wellbeing, emphasizing the challenging conditions many seafarers encounter at work. We 
also highlighted the issue of seafarer abandonment, the severe consequences this can have, and the need for industry-wide solutions. 

In July 2024, Gard published its first Crew Claims Report which delves into key trends in crew and people-related insurance claims. This 
comprehensive report highlights the most frequent injuries, illnesses and other risks that seafarers encounter while onboard and aims to shed on 
the vital importance of seafarers' health and safety. Following the release of this report, a podcast outlining key findings and focusing on seafarer 
risks and well-being was released. 

To mark the International Human Rights Day in December 2024, we also highlighted the issue of recruitment fees through an insight article 
published on our website. This article sheds light on the financial and social burdens placed on seafarers due to the extensive practice of 
recruitment fees, and the impact this has on seafarers’ wellbeing and livelihoods. The article also outlines proposed industry measures to tackle the 
issue.

For the year ahead, we will examine the possibility of harmonizing our current routines and procedures related to human rights and governance 
within the organization. This means reviewing and aligning our existing frameworks, policies, and operations that deal with issues such as human 
rights and labor rights, anti-corruption practices, and overall responsible business conduct to ensure consistency and effectiveness. This will involve 
assessing the extent to which these frameworks are currently integrated and identifying opportunities to strengthen their coherence across different 
areas of the business.

Disclosure

In 2024, Gard received one request for information to which we addressed and responded within the period specified in Section 7 of the Norwegian 
Transparency Act.

To meet the disclosure requirement of the Act, Gard has internal procedures to respond to information requests provided in Section 6. Inquiries or 
requests for information related to the Norwegian Transparency Act should be directed to sustainable_business@gard.no. 

The report will be made available at https://www.gard.no/about-gard/transparency-act/ at the latest of 30 June 2025 in line with Section 5 of the 
Transparency Act. Previous year’s report can also be found here.

ASSURANCEFORENINGEN GARD - GJENSIDIG -
Board of Directors’ Report

                  Financial Statements for the period 1 January 2024 to 31 December 20246 of 41



This file is sealed with a digital signature.
The seal is a guarantee for the authenticity 
of the document.

Document ID: 
928CC77811194F0E96DD87FA545E714C

Economic impact

As part of our ongoing preparation for CSRD and EU Taxonomy reporting, Gard has continued to assess sustainability risks and impacts within our 
investment portfolio. Consistent with previous years, we have mapped the ESG performance of our equity portfolio based on methodology from 
MSCI, a leading provider of financial data and analytics to investors.

From 2025, Gard will report according to the EU Taxonomy, and in this regard, we have started preparing for this in collaboration with MSCI. We 
started gathering data so that we can assess our investment portfolio’s eligibility for, and alignment to, the EU Taxonomy. 

Governance impact

The results of our DMA process indicate that business conduct remains a material topic, reflecting its sustained significance over the years. The 
assessment highlights several key areas of impact for the organization, including business ethics and corporate culture, effective management of 
supplier relationships, prevention and detection of corruption and bribery, and data protection.

To uphold the highest legal and ethical standards, Gard expects all employees and external business partners to comply with our Code of Ethics 
and Business Conduct, covering financial crime prevention, anti-corruption, anti-money laundering, and Whistleblowing. We also enforce a separate 
Supplier Code of Conduct and Bribery Prevention Requirements for correspondents, alongside internal claims handling and underwriting 
instructions.

In alignment with the Norwegian Transparency Act, Gard has established formal procedures for human rights due diligence and response 
mechanisms. A cross-functional working group is responsible for ensuring the implementation of the human rights due diligence process. This 
comprehensive process involves conducting human rights risk and impact assessments across our operations and supply chains, as well as with 
our business partners.

Our Supplier Code of Conduct sets the minimum requirements and standards on responsible business conduct that we expect from our suppliers, 
business partners, and external service providers. In the event of any observed deviations from our Supplier Code of Conduct, we aim to engage in 
a dialogue to understand the reasons behind such deviations and discuss effective corrective measures. 

Through our human rights due diligence and Know Your Counterpart processes, we aim to enforce ethical guidelines regarding labor practices and 
corporate governance. This includes treating their workforce and workers in the value chain with dignity and respect, prohibiting the use of forced or 
child labor, ensuring fair wages, providing equal opportunities, supporting equality, diversity, and inclusion, and fostering safe and healthy working 
conditions.  

We view supplier engagement as an ongoing process. We maintain open channels of communication with our suppliers, external service providers, 
and business partners to discuss sustainability issues and challenges and to serve as a discussion partner for working on improvements.  

Gard’s has a zero-tolerance stance on corruption and bribery and has strict policies regarding facilitation payments and corporate hospitality.In 
addition, our Know Your Customer (KYC) Framework outlines Gard's position on corruption, providing clear guidelines for employees and third 
parties. It covers responsibilities, principles, and values to ensure compliance with anti-corruption standards. 

Gard's policy on data privacy and protection is designed to ensure the lawful, fair, and transparent processing of personal data. The Personal Data 
Protection Policy outlines the company's commitment to safeguarding personal information and complying with applicable data privacy laws and 
regulations. In addition, our policies on information security and protection underscore the importance of structured and systematic information 
security management. 

Gard has established grievance mechanisms which help to identify incidents, facilitate prompt intervention, and ensure that issues are dealt with in 
a timely manner without risk of repercussions. 

• Internal intermediary channels – any complaint related to misconduct or workplace-related issues is to be reported to the responsible 
leader, Human Resources, employee representative or the relevant body with the appropriate mandate.  

• Whistleblowing portal – concerns relating to misconduct or censurable conditions can be reported through this platform by any natural 
person in the context of his or her or work-related activities, including employees, members, personnel of suppliers and (sub)contractors, 
former employees, job applicants, and business partners. The portal operates on anonymity and is managed by Ernst & Young.  

Employees have the option to report through both our internal and external channels with the option of anonymity while external parties can raise, or 
report concerns anonymously via our Whistleblowing portal. The portal is accessible on Gard website providing a secure and confidential way to 
voice concerns. 

While Gard has established internal whistleblowing procedures, any person has the right to report misconduct or censurable conditions to 
authorities.

Ship recycling

Gard actively encourage and support ship recycling according to the Hong Kong convention or EU Ship Recycling Regulation.

Research and development

The Association does not carry out research and development activities.

FUND MANAGEMENT

A major part of the Association’s investment portfolio is invested through an Irish umbrella unit trust fund; a contractual fund structure with a 
segregated liability between sub funds and investors. The following risk carriers in the Group hold units which represent a beneficial interest in the 
assets of the unit trust; Assuranceforeningen Gard - gjensidig -, Gard P. & I. (Bermuda) Ltd., Gard Marine & Energy Limited, Gard Marine & Energy 
Insurance (Europe) AS, Hydra Gard Cell and Gard Reinsurance Co Ltd. The objective of the investment structure is saving of management costs 
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and optimizing the total returns within the investment guidelines. The portfolio managers in the Unit Trust structure are all specialists within the class 
of assets the individual manager has been given a mandate to manage. 

The general investment guidelines for the management of the funds of the Association are determined by the Board of Directors. The general 
guidelines determined by the Board of Directors contain the overall risk limits with regards to the investments, such as the types of financial 
instruments that can be used, as ranges within certain asset classes. Each portfolio manager employed shall not manage more than 30 percent of 

the total fund. The individual portfolio manager’s mandate is composed on the basis of an index enabling the Association to measure the individual 
manager’s performance against a benchmark.

Management reports on the performance and composition of the portfolio at each Board of Directors meeting. For each meeting, a compliance 
report is produced showing whether there are non-conformities in relation to the investment guidelines.

In the view of the Board of Directors the Association’s investments can be described as having a medium risk profile.

INSURANCE BUSINESS

Entered tonnage

At the end of the financial period to 31 December 2024, the number of entered vessels and other units were 4,358. The total tonnage of the direct 
business amounted to 189.0 million gross tons of which direct owner’s entries amounted to 104.9 million gross tons.

Reinsurance

In the financial period to 31 December 2024, the Association’s retention level for insurance liabilities, arising out of any one event any one vessel, 
was USD 10 million, net of reinsurance, for mutual entries reinsured under the IG Pooling Agreement. For liabilities arising under fixed premium 
entries reinsured outside the Pool structure, the retention level was USD 20 million, net of reinsurance, any one event any one vessel. The 
Association’s reinsurance program was structured as outlined below.

According to the IG Pooling Agreement claims in the layer between USD 10 million and USD 100 million were shared between the parties to that 
agreement pursuant to an agreed formula. Further the reinsurance protection through the Pool was USD 2,000 million, any one event any one 
vessel, in excess of the USD 100 million being the upper limit of the Pool.

Fixed premium entries covering risks falling outside the scope of the Pooling Agreement were reinsured by the Association in the commercial 
reinsurance market with overall capacity limits of USD 500 million for Mobile Offshore Units and USD 1 billion for Charterers and Floating 
Production Storage and Offloading segments. The level of retained risk for each claim was USD 20 million.

Internal reinsurance contracts

The Association has entered into a separate inward reinsurance treaty with Gard P. & I. (Bermuda) Ltd., where the Association, as the reinsurer, 
covers a proportion of the risks retained by Gard P. & I. (Bermuda) Ltd. under the reinsurance arrangements based on the Pooling Agreement and 
the market reinsurance contracts for fixed premium business.

The Association has also entered into a reinsurance treaty with its parent company, Gard P. & I. (Bermuda) Ltd., covering a proportion of the risks 
retained under the above reinsurance arrangements based on the Pooling Agreement and the market reinsurance contract for fixed premium 
business. 

The Association has entered into a stop loss reinsurance agreement with Gard Reinsurance Co. Ltd, a subsidiary of Gard P. & I. (Bermuda) Ltd. 

The Association has also entered into a reinsurance agreement with Hydra, which is a segregated accounts company where Gard P. & I. (Bermuda) 
Ltd. is the owner of the Hydra Gard cell. 

Open policy years

The 2022 policy year

Over the last 12 months, the value of reported claims for the policy year 2022 has deteriorated. The year still gives a healthy technical surplus and a 
stable development is expected going forward.. 

The year can at the earliest be closed in November 2025. Further calls are not expected.

The 2023 policy year

Over the last 12 months, the technical result for the policy year 2023 has shown a good improvement. A stable development is expected going 
forward.

The year can at the earliest be closed in November 2026. Further calls are not expected.

The 2024 policy year

The 2024 policy year has delivered a result below expectations up to 31 December 2024. The result includes an Owners’ General Discount (OGD) 
of 10 percent amounting to USD 17.0 million. The level of the OGD was decided by the Board of Directors upfront of the inception of the policy year 
based on the expected financial position of the Association as at 31 December 2024.
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The year can at the earliest be closed in November 2027.

Closed policy years

All closed years up to and including the 2021 policy year have developed as anticipated and show an overall surplus.

FINANCIAL RISK

The regulatory solvency capital requirement for the Association was USD 114 million as of 31 December 2023, up from USD 96 million at last year's 
end. The regulatory solvency ratio was 152 per cent, a decrease of 17 percentage points compared to the last period's end.

Insurance risk 

The Association writes P&I risks through direct operations and reinsurance of Gard P. & I. (Bermuda) Ltd. through a quota share agreement. 

The Association participates in the external reinsurance programs as described above in addition to the internal reinsurance contracts.

Insurance risk was up by USD 13 million from last year, totaling USD 108 million. This increase was mainly due to an increase in exposure in the 
insurance portfolio and inflation.

A set of extreme events for insurance risk has been identified and the realistic possible loss to the Association has been calculated. The highest 
insurance loss for own account from the identified extreme events is USD 33 million, which is 28 percent of the Association’s equity. 

Market risk 

The Association’s market risk has been steady over the last period, slightly decreasing from USD 27 million to USD 26 million as of 31 December 
2024.

According to stress tests, the highest estimated market loss to the Association is USD 25 million due to a risk premium shock. 

Counterparty default risk 

The main sources of counterparty default risk are intra-group reinsurers and cash deposits at banks.  As of 31 December 2024, the main 
counterparty exposures were towards Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation, Nordea Bank Abp Norway branch, DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited 
and Northern Trust Global Services Ltd.

The credit risk regarding receivables is handled by Group policies and by close follow-up. Outstanding and overdue premiums from members and 
customers may be set off in claims payments. 

Counterparty default risk was up by USD 1 million over the period, totaling USD 8 million. 

Liquidity risk 

The insurance premium inflow is payable in three installments during the policy year, the claims payment pattern will vary, and reinsurance costs are 
payable in installments during the policy year. A liquidity buffer is established as a money market fund and a more liquid part of the investment 
portfolio. The buffer is used to place excess liquidity in periods or to be drawn on when liquidity is needed. 

The duration of investable assets shall meet the pay-out profile of the Association’s liabilities. The investable assets consist of a portfolio that can be 
liquidated in a short period. The liquidity risk is deemed low. 

Operational risk 

The operational risk of the Association is assessed annually through the Group’s internal self-assessment. For regulatory purposes, the operational 
risk is calculated using a factor-based formula according to the EIOPA’s standard formula. The operational risk for the Association was up by less 
than USD 1 million over the period.

Capital and solvency position 

The Association and its branches in Finland, Japan, Hong Kong, and the United Kingdom comply with all solvency and capital requirements. 
Assuranceforeningen Gard - gjensidig - has the opportunity to do Direct Reinsurance Calls/Supplementary Calls on Gard P. & I. (Bermuda) Ltd. 
through the internal reinsurance agreement.

ACCOUNTS FOR THE FINANCIAL PERIOD TO 31 DECEMBER 2024

The Association has been granted dispensation by the Norwegian Financial Supervisory Authority and the Tax Authority from the requirements to 
present the annual accounts in Norwegian currency and in the Norwegian language. In accordance with this, the annual accounts are presented in 
United States Dollar (USD) and in the English language.

Result

The statement of comprehensive income shows an loss of USD 0.8 million (income of USD 14.2 million). These accounts have been prepared on 
the basis of 10 percent Owners' General Discount, amounting to USD 17.0 million, in respect of the 2024 policy year (financial period ending 31 
December 2024). Last year the OGD was 5 percent, amounting to USD 8.3 million, in respect of the 2023 policy year (financial period ending 31 
December 2023).
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Technical result was a negative of USD 9.1 million (positive of USD 1.0 million). 

Premiums

The Gross written premium in the period ending 31 December 2024 was USD 252.3 million (USD 238.2 million). Earned premium for own account 
was USD 138.0 million (USD 116.6 million).

On Estimated Total Call basis the Gross written premium for the financial period ending 31 December 2024 was USD 270.7 million (USD 246.7 
million). The main reason for the increase in gross written premium on ETC basis, over last period, is increase in volume.

Claims

Gross incurred claims during the period amounted to USD 169.1 million (USD 147.0 million). Net claims incurred for own account was USD 136.0 
million (USD 103.3 million). The claims development was worse than plan with four large claims above USD 5 million and several medium sized 
claims. 

Technical result 

The technical result was a negative USD 9.1 million in the period to 31 December 2024 (positive of USD 1.0 million).

Non-technical result 

The non-technical result was a positive USD 10.3 million for the period to 31 December 2024 (positive USD 17.6 million). The investment portfolio 
returned 3.8 per cent against a benchmark of 4.1 per cent.  

Total equity

Other equity has increase to USD 117.8 million (USD 118.6 million). The equity is retained to meet unforeseen fluctuations in claims exposure, 
possible catastrophes, and extraordinary claims patterns that fall within the Association’s liabilities and to meet capital requirements.

Technical provisions

As at 31 December 2024 the Association’s technical provisions to cover reported and unreported claims for own account amounted to USD 214.5 
million (USD 195.2 million).

The Board of Directors is of the opinion that other equity and the technical provisions are sufficient to cover all liabilities for the 2024 policy year and 
earlier policy years.

Cash flow analysis

The Association’s bank deposit as of 31 December 2024 amounted to USD 108.4 million (USD 100.8 million). Net cash flows from operating 
activities consist primarily of incoming payments in the form of premiums and outgoing payments in the form of claims and operating expenses. 
Operating liquidity (cash) is balanced by transfers to and from the investment portfolio.

GOING CONCERN AND FUTURE DEVELOPMENT

The Association’s financial situation is monitored closely, including market risk, insurance risk, counterparty risk, operational risk and liquidity risk. 
Assuranceforeningen Gard - gjensidig - is for the time being dependent on the reinsurance agreement with Gard P. & I. (Bermuda) Ltd. and the 
opportunity to do Direct calls/Supplementary calls. 

The business development is expected to be positive.  

Against this background and pursuant to the Norwegian Accounting Act of 1998, chapter 3, the annual financial statement of the Association has 
been prepared on a going concern basis and the Board of Directors is of the opinion that the conditions for going concern are present.

GOVERNING CORPORATE BODIES

The Board of Directors of the Association are composed as shown on page 1.

Board of Directors

Trond Eilertsen and Ian Beveridge shall retire by rotation at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting but can be re-elected.
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*****

The Board of Directors wishes to express its gratitude to Members, business associates and correspondents for their participation and support to 
the Association, and thanks all employees of the Association and Gard AS for their loyalty and interest throughout the year.

Arendal, 24 March 2025

Board of Directors
Assuranceforeningen Gard - gjensidig -

Trond Eilertsen Ian Beveridge Turid Grotmoll
Chairman Deputy Chairman

Nils Aden Marit Lunde Rolf Thore Roppestad
Managing Director
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01.01.24 01.01.23
Amounts in USD 000's Notes to 31.12.24 to 31.12.23

Technical account
Gross written premium 4, 5, 6 252,304 238,197

Gross earned premium 5, 6 250,371 234,281
Ceded reinsurance 6 (112,364) (117,721)
Earned premium for own account 6 138,007 116,560

Other insurance related income 885 913

Gross incurred claims 6 169,118 146,951
Reinsurers' share of gross incurred claims 6 (33,089) (43,688)
Claims incurred for own account 6 136,029 103,263

Acquisition cost 7 7,996 10,147
Agents' commission 7 12,227 11,299
Commission received 7 (13,166) (11,199)
Insurance related expenses for own account 7 7,057 10,247

Other insurance related expenses 7 4,866 3,005

Technical result (9,059) 958

Non-technical account
Interest and similar income 8 2,153 1,727
Change in unrealised gain on investments 6,236 16,188
Gain on realisation of investments 2,485 317
Other expenses (611) (631)
Non-Technical result 10,263 17,600

Profit before tax 1,204 18,559
Corporate income tax 9 2,100 4,468

Net result before other comprehensive income/(loss) (896) 14,090

Other comprehensive income/(loss)
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurement due to change in pension assumptions 13 101 97
Income tax related to change in pension assumptions 13 (25) (24)
Other comprehensive income for the period, net of tax 75 73

Total comprehensive income/(loss) (820) 14,163
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Restated*
As at As at

Amounts in USD 000's Notes 31.12.24 31.12.23

Assets
Investments
Financial investments at fair value through profit or loss
Equities and investment funds 11  37,759  36,357 
Interest-bearing securities and funds 11, 12, 18  210,272  194,020 
Total investments 18  248,031  230,378 

Reinsurers' share of technical provisions
Reinsurers' share of gross premium reserve 6  15,384  16,552 
Reinsurers' share of gross claims reserve 6, 12  127,755  128,564 
Total reinsurers' share of technical provisions  143,139  145,116 

Receivables
Receivables from direct insurance operations
Policyholders 14  21,275  19,592 

Receivables from reinsurance operations
Receivables from reinsurance operations  2,131  0 
Receivables from group companies  544  523 

Other receivables
Other receivables  1  1 
Other receivables from group companies  19  611 
Total receivables 12  23,970  20,727 

Other assets
Equipment 10  4,480  3,624 
Cash and cash equivalents 12, 15, 18  108,381  100,778 
Other assets 12  8,238  8,074 
Total other assets 18  121,098  112,475 

Prepayments and accrued income
Accrued income and other prepayments  3,641  4,888 
Total prepayments and accrued income  3,641  4,888 

Total assets  539,880  513,584 

*See note 2.3.
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As at As at
Amounts in USD 000's Notes 31.12.24 31.12.23

Equity and liabilities
Equity
Retained earnings
Guarantee scheme 0 2
Other equity 117,814 118,633
Total equity 117,814 118,634

Liabilities
Technical provisions
Gross premium reserve 6 36,147 34,214
Gross claims reserve 6, 12 342,276 323,717
Total technical provisions 378,423 357,932

Provisions for other liabilities
Pension obligations, net 13 1,115 1,379
Income tax payable 9, 12 4,965 3,866
Deferred tax 8,295 11,790
Total provisions for other liabilities 14,375 17,035

Payables
Payables arising out of direct insurance operations 12 7,346 6,688
Payables arising out of reinsurance operations 12 4,839 2,627
Payables arising out of reinsurance operations - group companies 12 10,163 7,618
Payables to group companies 12 1,436 930
Other payables 12 3,174 118
Total payables 26,958 17,981

Accruals and deferred income
Accruals and deferred income 12 2,310 2,002
Total accruals and deferred income 2,310 2,002

Total liabilities 422,066 394,950

Total equity and liabilities 539,880 513,584

Off balance sheet items
Contingent liabilities 445 356

ASSURANCEFORENINGEN GARD - GJENSIDIG -
Balance sheet

                  Financial Statements for the period 1 January 2024 to 31 December 202414 of 41



This file is sealed with a digital signature.
The seal is a guarantee for the authenticity 
of the document.

Document ID: 
928CC77811194F0E96DD87FA545E714C

Guarantee Other 
Amounts in USD 000's Notes Scheme equity Total

Equity as at 01.01.23  3  104,468  104,471 

Net result before other comprehensive income  0  14,090  14,090 
Remeasurement due to change in pension assumptions 13  0  97  97 
Income tax related to change in pension assumptions  0  (24)  (24) 
Provision for Norwegian Non-life insurance Guarantee scheme  (1)  1  0 

Equity as at 31.12.23  2  118,633  118,634 

Equity as at 01.01.24  2  118,633  118,635 

Net result before other comprehensive loss  0  (896)  (896) 
Remeasurement due to change in pension assumptions 13  0  101  101 
Income tax related to change in pension assumptions  0  (25)  (25) 
Provision for Norwegian Non-life insurance Guarantee scheme  (2)  2  0 

Equity as at 31.12.24  0  117,814  117,814 
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Restated*
01.01.24 01.01.23

Amounts in USD 000's Notes to 31.12.24 to 31.12.23

Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax  1,204  18,559 
Tax paid 9  (3,109)  (2,195) 
Change in unrealised (gain)/loss on investments  (6,236)  (16,188) 
Pension cost charged to statement of comprehensive income 13  (101)  (97) 
Change in pension obligations  (163)  (83) 
Change in receivables and payables  5,570  439 
Change in technical provisions and other accruals  24,022  (4,284) 
Financial investments  (11,418)  26,971 
Change in valuation due to change in exchange rates  (1,310)  (404) 

Net cash flow from operating activities  8,460  22,718 

Cash flow from investment activities
Purchase of equipment net of sales 10  (856)  (194) 

Net cash flow from investment activities  (856)  (194) 

Net change in cash and cash equivalents  7,603  22,524 
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 15  100,778  78,253 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 15, 19  108,381  100,778 

*See note 2.3.
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Assuranceforeningen Gard - gjensidig - (the “Association”) is a mutual insurance association registered with the Norwegian Companies Register 
(organisation number 939 717 609). The registered office of the Association is Kittelsbuktveien 31, 4836 Arendal. The Association is licensed by the 
Norwegian Ministry of Finance to carry out marine liability and legal costs insurances. As a mutual insurance association, the Association is owned 
by the owners and charterers of the ships from time to time insured by the Association for Protection and Indemnity (P&I) risks (the “Members”). 
There are no external capital owners.

The principal activities of the Association are: to insure its Members for marine P&I risks, including the reinsurance of a proportion of the P&I risk 
underwritten by Gard P. & I. (Bermuda) Ltd. as a direct insurer; and manage its assets which are used to cover the technical provisions. 

The Members of the Association are also Members of Gard P. & I. (Bermuda) Ltd. and vice versa. The major part of the two associations’ combined 
portfolio of direct business is underwritten by Gard P. & I. (Bermuda) Ltd. The Association is primarily used as a vehicle for a smaller proportion of 
the combined P&I portfolio, which is primarily direct P&I business where an EU/EEA based insurer is required in order to comply with governing EU 
regulations regarding to cross border activities.

In as much as Gard P. & I. (Bermuda) Ltd. has the right to exercise membership rights in the reinsured portfolio, it controls more than two thirds of 
the voting rights in the Association . This is the legal basis for consolidating the two associations’ accounts pursuant to the International Financial 
Reporting Standard 10 Consolidated Financial Statements. Gard P. & I. (Bermuda) Ltd. and its subsidiaries are considered as ‘Gard group’ or ‘the 
group’.

 The Association’s accounts are consolidated into the accounts of Gard P. & I. (Bermuda) Ltd. The consolidated accounts are available at the office 
of Gard P. & I. (Bermuda) Ltd.’s management company, Lingard Limited in Bermuda and on www.gard.no.

Note 2 - Significant accounting policies

2.1   Basis of preparation of the accounts
The accounts include the activity from 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2024. The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with 
regulations for annual accounts for non-life insurance companies approved by the Norwegian Ministry of Finance. 

2.2   Changes in accounting policies
There are no other changes in accounting policies for the Association for the financial period ending 31 December 2024.

2.3   Changes to presentation and classification
The Association maintains deposits in Northern Trust with an overnight sweep into a money market fund (Northern Trust Cash Fund). 

During 2024 the Association reviewed the classification of these deposits. Based on the re-assessment the Association concluded that the correct 
classification and presentation of money market funds according to the definition in NRS (F) Cash flow statement, is Cash and cash equivalents 
(included in Other assets), and not Interest-bearing securities and funds and Other financial investments (both included in Financial investments at 
fair value through profit and loss) as earlier presented and classified. The Association therefore decided to change the presentation and 
classification of these funds in line with the conclusion of the re-assessment. This change only affects the classification within the balance sheet 
assets and the Cash flow statement, the change has no effect on total assets or total comprehensive income. Comparative information has been 
restated accordingly (see note 18).

2.4   Use of accounting estimates when preparing the accounts
The preparation of the accounts requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the valuation of assets, liabilities, revenues, 
expenses, and contingent liabilities. Due to unforeseen circumstances, these estimates may change in the future. Estimates and their assumptions 
are considered continuously, and accounts adjusted accordingly. 

2.5   Foreign currency
Functional currency and presentation currency
The accounts are prepared in USD, which is both the functional currency and presentation currency of the Association. 

Transactions in foreign currency
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated at the rate applicable on the transaction date. Monetary items in a foreign currency are translated 
into USD using the exchange rate applicable on the balance sheet date. The currency exposure of the provision for claims is assessed to be 
equivalent to the same currency exposure as claims paid. The opening and closing balances of the provision for claims in foreign currency are 
translated into USD based on the same method as for monetary items. Translation differences are recognised in the statement of comprehensive 
income as they occur during the accounting period. Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings, cash, and cash equivalents are 
presented as part of the non-technical result as ‘Interest and similar income’. Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to financial investments 
are presented as part of the non-technical result as ‘Change in unrealised gain/(loss)loss on investments’.

All foreign exchange gains and losses relating to technical operations are presented in the statement of comprehensive income as part of the 
technical result.

2.6   Provisions, contingent liabilities and assets
Provisions are recognised when the Association has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, and it is probable that an 
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the 
obligation. For potential obligations whose likelihood is not remote or probable (i.e., not ‘more likely than not’), a contingent liability is disclosed. 
Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial statements but are disclosed if it is likely that resources embodying economic benefits will flow 
to the Association.
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2.7   Events after the reporting period
New and material information on the Association’s financial position at the end of the reporting period, which becomes known after the end of the 
reporting period, is recorded in the financial statements. Events after the reporting period that do not affect the Association’s financial position at the 
end of the reporting period, but which will affect the financial position in the future, are disclosed if significant. 

2.8   Other significant accounting policies
Other significant accounting policies are presented and described in other notes to the financial statements, together with the more expanded 
disclosures for that particular area. This is done to make the disclosures more relevant to the users and make it easier to get an overview of the 
related note. The following table includes other significant accounting policies that are described in separate notes to the financial statements, 
including the number of the note:

Accounting policy Note
Technical result 6
Technical provisions 6
Insurance related expenses 7
Interest and similar income/(expenses) 8
Tax 9
Equipment 10
Financial investments 11
Pensions 13
Cash and cash equivalents 15
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Reinsurance agreements 
Gard P. & I. (Bermuda) Ltd. and the Association have entered into mutual reinsurance agreements. The Association reinsures a proportion 
amounting to 15 per cent for policy year up to 2009 and 2 per cent for policy year from 2010 of Gard P. & I. (Bermuda) Ltd.  risks that is not 
reinsured elsewhere. The Association cedes to Gard P. & I. (Bermuda) Ltd. by way of reinsurance 85 per cent for policy year up to 2009 and 25 per 
cent for policy period from 2010 of the Association's risks that are not reinsured elsewhere.

Received from Gard P. & I. (Bermuda) Ltd. Ceded to Gard P. & I. (Bermuda) 
Ltd.01.01.24 01.01.23 01.01.24 01.01.23

Amounts in USD 000's to 31.12.24 to 31.12.23 to 31.12.24 to 31.12.23

Reinsurance premium 5,596 5,299 (44,804) (37,754)
Reinsurers' share of gross settled claims (3,938) (3,958) 30,098 26,685
Reinsurance commission (1,823) (1,740) 13,194 11,355

Received from Gard P. & I. (Bermuda) Ltd. Ceded to Gard P. & I. (Bermuda) 
Ltd.As at As at As at As at

Amounts in USD 000's 31.12.24 31.12.23 31.12.24 31.12.23

Reinsurers' share of gross claims reserve 10,626 10,552 87,540 85,111
Reinsurers' share of gross premium reserve 811 783 6,651 5,626

The Association has entered into a stop loss reinsurance agreement with Gard Reinsurance Co Ltd (a company owned by Gard P.& I. (Bermuda) 
Ltd.) protecting the former against insurance liabilities in excess of a loss ratio corresponding to certain per cent for each policy year. The table 
below provides loss ratio per cent and limit amount for each policy year.

Amounts in USD 000's Loss ratio per cent Limit amount

Policy year
2010 to 2014 90.0  25,000 
2015 to 2018 100.0  40,000 
2019 to 2020 110.0  20,000 
2021 95.0  9,250 
2022 93.0  7,740 
2023 87.5  7,500 
2024 95.0  12,000 

Ceded to Gard Reinsurance Co Ltd

01.01.24 01.01.23
Amounts in USD 000's to 31.12.24 to 31.12.23

Ceded reinsurance premium (2,000) (2,000)

Ceded to Gard Reinsurance Co Ltd

As at As at
Amounts in USD 000's 31.12.24 31.12.23

Reinsurers' share of gross claims reserve 5,076 5,428

The Association and Gard P. & I. (Bermuda) Ltd. have entered into a reinsurance agreement with Hydra, which is a segregated accounts company. 
The Association's segregated account (cell) in Hydra is covering the former companies' liability to a layer of the International Group (IG) Pool and 
retention in the first market excess layer.

Ceded to Hydra
01.01.24 01.01.23

Amounts in USD 000's to 31.12.24 to 31.12.23

Reinsurance premium (17,436) (30,649)
Reinsurers' share of gross settled claims 276 1,113
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Ceded to Hydra
As at As at

Amounts in USD 000's 31.12.23 31.12.22

Reinsurers' share of gross claims reserve 8,854 9,149
Reinsurers' share of gross premium reserve 2,151 4,319

Insurance management agreement
The Association has entered into an insurance agency agreement with Gard AS, a company owned by Gard P. & I. (Bermuda) Ltd. being the 
general agent, whereby Gard AS is delegated authorithy as an agent and insurance intermediary to perform claims handling and underwriting 
functions on behalf of the Association. The Association has also entered into agreements with the subsidiaries of Gard AS for services rendered to 
the Association. 

In addition, secondment agreements have been entered into between the insurance branches in Japan and Hong Kong, and the insurance 
intermediary service company in the same country. Costs related to these agreements are reimbursed by the insurance branches directly to the 
insurance intermediary service companies.

Insurance services invoiced
01.01.24 01.01.23

Amounts in USD 000's to 31.12.24 to 31.12.23

Gard AS 18,682 18,246
Gard (Greece) Ltd. 0 288
Gard (HK) Ltd 6,779 6,979
Gard (Japan) KK 2,206 1,885
Gard (North America) Inc. 1,626 1,358
Gard (UK) Ltd. 5,740 5,112
OY Gard Baltic Ab 1,355 1,247
Gard (Singapore) Pte. Ltd. 699 0
Total 37,087 35,116

Note 4 - Gross written premium by geographical areas

01.01.24 01.01.23
Amounts in USD 000's to 31.12.24 to 31.12.23

EEA / European Economic Area 73,224 77,699
Norway (499) 105
Other areas 179,578 160,393
Total gross written premium 252,304 238,197

The geographical split is made based on the location of the individual Member or client.

A Member is an owner, operator or charterer (including a bareboat or demise charterer) or a ship entered in the Association who according to the 
Articles of the Association and the Rules is entitled to membership of the Association. Client is defined as any entity with an active insurance cover 
from the Gard group of companies that is not in the capacity of a Member (P&I Owners’ Entry and Charterer’s Entry). Members may also be a client 
of Gard. 
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These accounts are prepared on the basis of 10 per cent Owners’ General Discount in respect of the 2024 policy year (5 per cent in the respect of 
the 2023 policy year). The policy year is based on the period from GMT noon on 20 February to GMT noon on 20 February the following year.

The Owners’ General Discount amounted to USD 17.0 million for the financial period ending 31 December 2024 (USD 8.3 million for the financial 
period ending 31 December 2023). On Estimated Total Call (ETC) basis the gross written premium for the financial period ending 31 December 
2024 is USD 270.7 million (financial period ending 31 December 2023 USD 246.7 million).

The table below shows the statement of comprehensive income on ETC basis.

Amounts in USD 000's
01.01.24                

to 31.12.24
01.01.23               

to 31.12.23

Gross written premium (ETC)  270,680  246,672 
Gross earned premium (ETC)  267,329  242,585 
Ceded reinsurance  (112,364)  (117,721) 
Earned premium for own account (ETC)  154,965  124,865 

Other insurance related income  885  913 

Claims incurred gross  169,118  146,951 
Reinsurers' share of gross incurred claims  (33,089)  (43,688) 
Claims incurred for own account  136,029  103,263 

Insurance related expenses for own account  7,057  10,247 
Other insurance related expenses  4,866  3,005 

Technical result (ETC)  7,900  9,263 

Non-technical result  10,263  17,600 

Profit/(loss) before tax (ETC)  18,162  26,863 
Corporate income tax  2,100  4,468 
Net result before other comprehensive income/(loss)  16,062  22,395 

Other comprehensive income/(loss)  75  73 
Result (ETC)  16,138  22,468 

Owners' General Discount (earned)  16,958  8,305 
Total comprehensive income/(loss)  (820)  14,163 
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Accounting policy
Premiums and received reinsurance premiums 
Premiums are based on the insurance contracts where one party (the insurer) has accepted a significant risk from another party (the policyholder) 
by agreeing to compensate the policyholder if a specified uncertain future event adversely affects the policyholder. Premiums are recognised over 
the insurance policy period. Supplementary calls for P&I business may be charged to Members for previous policy years. 

Unearned premiums are those proportions of premiums written in a year that relate to periods of risk after the reporting date. Unearned premiums 
are calculated on a daily pro-rata basis. The proportion attributable to subsequent periods is deferred as gross premium reserve. 

Ceded reinsurance premiums
Reinsurance premiums are recognised as an expense over the underlying policy period. 

Claims expenses
Expenses regarding incurred claims and other administrative expenses are recognised in the period they are incurred. Paid claims include an 
allocated portion of both direct and indirect claims handling cost. 

Reinsurers’ share of gross incurred claims
Reinsurers’ share of gross incurred claims are recognised as a reduction of claim expense in the period they are incurred.

01.01.24 01.01.23
Amounts in USD 000's  to 31.12.24  to 31.12.23

Technical result

Gross written premium
Direct and proportional reinsurance accepted 246,499 238,197
Non proportional reinsurance accepted 5,805 0
Total gross written premium 252,304 238,197

Ceded reinsurance written
Ceded reinsurance written (111,196) (119,246)
Total ceded reinsurance written (111,196) (119,246)

Gross earned premium
Direct and proportional reinsurance accepted 245,381 234,281
Non proportional reinsurance accepted 4,990 0
Total gross earned premium 250,371 234,281

Ceded reinsurance (112,364) (117,721)
Earned premium for own account 138,007 116,560

Claims incurred, gross
Direct and proportional reinsurance accepted
Incurred this period* 163,394 146,397
Incurred previous periods 4,408 554
Non proportional reinsurance accepted
Incurred this period 1,315 0
Total claims incurred, gross 169,118 146,951

Reinsurers' share of gross incurred claims (33,089) (43,688)
Claims incurred for own account 136,029 103,263

*Claims handling expenses incurred in the current financial year are included in Claims incurred – gross this period.

Accounting policy
Technical provisions are calculated in accordance with the regulations for annual accounts for insurance companies approved by the Norwegian 
Ministry of Finance. 

Gross premium reserve
The gross premium reserve is amortised over the risk period and is calculated and accounted for in the balance sheet as a provision for the part of 
premium written that exceeds the end of the financial period. Changes in the provision are charged to the statement of comprehensive income. 

Gross claims reserve 
The gross claims reserve comprises estimates of the expected remaining exposure from claims that have been reported to the Association (RBNS), 
and from claims that have been incurred, but which have not yet been reported (IBNR).
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Provisions for reported claims are made by assessing the liability of each claim. Actuarial methods are used in estimating the total cost of 
outstanding claims. The claim provisions have not been discounted.

In accordance with the Norwegian regulations for insurance companies, provisions for internal claims handling expenses (unallocated loss 
adjustment expenses, or ULAE) and binary events are included in the ‘Gross claims reserve’.

Insurance contract liabilities
Insurance contract liabilities are the main items in the balance sheet based upon judgements and estimates. Estimates have to be made both for 
the expected total cost of claims reported and for the expected total cost of claims incurred, but not reported, at the balance sheet date. Standard 
actuarial methods are used in estimating the total cost of outstanding claims. The actuarial methods use historical data as one of the elements in 
the model to estimate future claims costs. It can take a significant period of time before the ultimate claims cost can be established with certainty..

As at As at
Amounts in USD 000's 31.12.24 31.12.23

Technical provisions gross
Provisions, at the beginning of the period  323,717  320,074 
Claims paid  (150,549)  (143,307) 
Claims incurred - gross this period*  164,700  146,397 
Claims incurred - gross previous periods  4,408  554 
Provisions, at the end of the period  342,276  323,717 

Reinsurers' share of claims provision  (127,755)  (128,564) 
Provisions net, at the end of the period  214,521  195,153 

*Claims handling expenses incurred in the current financial year are included in Claims incurred – gross this period.

Provision for unearned premiums, gross  36,147  34,214 
Reinsurers' share of premium provision  15,384  16,552 
Provision for unearned premiums, net  20,763  17,663 

The Association is a member of the International Group of P&I Clubs.
Gross technical provision regarding Pooling Agreement  52,600  51,418 
Net technical provision regarding Pooling Agreement  43,746  42,269 

Provision for outstanding claims
Technical provision gross  342,276  323,717 
Technical provision net  214,521  195,153 

Provided guarantees outside cover, not recognised in the balance sheet, amount to USD 0.4 million as at 31 December 2024 (USD 0.4 million as at 
31 December 2023).

The actuarial data driven estimates for IBNR are calculated using Chain ladder method, Bornhuetter Ferguson method and the Benktander method. 
The default method choice is: An adjusted Bornhuetter Ferguson method for the four most recent accident quarters where the claims experience is 
relatively immature. This method use reduced a priori from Financial Plan as input. The Chain ladder method is used for the remaining accident 
quarters. Both methods use DFM curves that describes the historical development of incurred claims. The reasonableness of the default method 
choice is assessed, and other choices might be selected based on actuarial judgement if appropriate. 

Sensitivity analyses have been performed in order to evaluate how sensitive the data driven IBNR estimate is to changes in the input parameters 
(DFM-factors and a priori). The parameters are adjusted one by one, increasing and decreasing the values by 10 per cent. The results are then 
compared with the booked results The Association Based on these methodologies the gross claim reserve ranges between USD 319.4 million and 
USD 327.9 million as at 31 December 2024 (ranges between USD 316.1 million and USD 324.2 million as at 31 December 2023).
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Accounting policy
Insurance related expenses for own account consist of broker and agent commissions, sales and administrative expenses, less commission 
received on ceded reinsurance premiums. Sales expenses are recognised in the period in which they are incurred. The administrative expenses 
and commission received are expensed over the underlying policy period. 

Insurance related expenses are accounted for in the period they are incurred.

There are no personal loan arrangement for employees or members of the Board of Directors of the Association.

01.01.24 01.01.23
Amounts in USD 000's  to 31.12.24  to 31.12.23

Acquisition costs and commissions
Sales related salaries  86  134 
Insurance intermediary  7,910  10,013 
Agents' commission  12,227  11,299 
Commission received  (13,166)  (11,199) 
Insurance related expenses for own account  7,057  10,247 

Number of part time staff 15 15

Remuneration to Group Leadership Team and Board of Directors

The table below provides information regarding payments made in the financial period 2024 to the Group Leadership Team and to members of the 
Board of Directors. Remuneration relating to the financial period to 31 December 2024, but not yet paid, is accrued for in the accounts.

Amounts in USD 000's Salary *
Board 

remuneration
Total 

remuneration

Group Leadership Team
Rolf Thore Roppestad (Managing Director)  75  0  75 
Bjørnar Andresen  38  0  38 
Torunn Biller White  29  0  29 
Lars Lislegard-Bækken  28  0  28 
Christen Guddal  35  0  35 
Christian Pritchard-Davies  31  0  31 
Total  236  0  236 

Members of the Board of Directors 
Trond Eilertsen  0  5  5 
Jane Sy (Member, retired)  0  5  5 
Ian Beveridge (Member)  0  5  5 
Sandra Gluck (Member)  0  5  5 
Nils Aden (Member)  0  5  5 
Total  0  25  25 

*  All figures are excluding social security costs.

None of the Company's employees are entitled to stock-based compensation. The Association therefore has no expenses or obligations related to 
such remuneration.

The CEO has a remuneration guarantee that comes into force if the Board should ask him to leave his position. The remuneration guarantee gives 
him 12 months’ salary in addition to a contractual six months’ notice period. 

The minority of the Group Leadership Team (GLT) and certain key personnel have a pension scheme that gives them the right to retire at 60 years 
of age and covers income included and above 12 times the base amount (see note  13 for definition of base amount). The full pension requires a 
thirty year accrual period in Gard, or it will be reduced accordingly.

Gard P. & I. (Bermuda) Ltd. has given a collective bonus promise to all employees within the group including the CEO. A bonus will be paid if 
predefined targets are met. Members of GLT (Group Leadership Team including CEO) and other Key Employees, as defined in the legislation, are 
participating in the collective bonus scheme subject to certain adjustments required in the new Finance Institution Act of 2015 (Finansforetaksloven). 
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The bonus will be paid through the companies where the employees work and refunded by Gard P. & I. (Bermuda) Ltd. A maximum possible bonus 
is 20 per cent of gross salary. For all employees, a bonus of 16 per cent of gross salary is expected to be paid for the year to 31 December 2024. 

The key features of the special terms for members of GLT and Key Employees can be summarized as follows: 
1. The payment of a proportion of the bonus triggered by the collective scheme shall be deferred for a period of 36 months from the expiry of 

the financial period the bonus is linked. 
2. An individual component based on an individual assessment conducted by the CEO in consultation with the Chairman of the Executive 

Committee of Gard P. & I. (Bermuda) Ltd.
3. Leaders of control functions do not take part in the collective bonus arrangement. They have an individual part and a fixed part. The fixed 

part amount to 10 per cent or 20 per cent on fixed gross salary. If 10 per cent, there is an individual part based on performance up to 10 
per cent. 

01.01.24 01.01.23
Amounts in USD 000's  to 31.12.24 to 31.12.23

Remuneration auditor
Statutory audit 236 165
Tax compliance services 3 15
Other approved non-audit services 13 0
Total remuneration to the auditors 252 179

VAT is included in the fees specified above.

01.01.24 01.01.23
Amounts in USD 000's to 31.12.24 to 31.12.23

Remuneration to related parties
Wikborg, Rein & Co.  1,024 1,090
Total remuneration related parties  1,024 1,090

During the financial period, one of the board members of the Association was a partner in the company Wikborg Rein & Co., which has provided 
legal services. VAT is included in the fees specified above.

01.01.24 01.01.23
Amounts in USD 000's to 31.12.24 to 31.12.23

Net operating expenses
Bad debt  (395)  184 
Service cost  37,493  35,528 
Allocated to claims handling and acquisition costs  (34,746)  (35,062) 
Other operating expenses  2,513  2,355 
Other insurance related expenses  4,866  3,005 

Note 8 - Interest and similar income/(expenses)

Accounting policy
Other income and expenses are accounted for in the period they are incurred.

01.01.24 01.01.23

Amounts in USD 000's to 31.12.24 to 31.12.23

Interest and similar income
Interest income/(expenses) 0 (6)
Income from financial investments 1,089 1,383
Foreign exchange gain 1,064 350
Total interest and similar income 2,153 1,727
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Accounting policy
The tax expense consists of tax payable and changes in deferred tax. 

Deferred tax/tax asset of the subsidiaries is calculated on all differences between the book value and the tax value of assets and liabilities. Deferred 
tax is calculated at the nominal tax rate of temporary differences and the tax effect of tax losses carried forward at the tax rate at the end of the 
accounting year. Changes in tax rates are accounted for when the new rate has been approved and changes are presented as part of the tax 
expense in the period the change has been made. A deferred tax asset is recorded in the balance sheet, when it is more likely than not that the tax 
asset will be utilised.

Taxes are calculated as follows
01.01.24 01.01.23

Amounts in USD 000's to 31.12.24 to 31.12.23

Basis for income tax expense, changes in deferred tax and tax payable
Profit/(loss) before tax as basis for tax calculation  1,204  18,559 
Pension charged directly to equity  95  102 
Basis for calculating tax  1,299  18,660 
Permanent differences  4,682  2,217 
Basis for the tax expense for the period  5,982  20,877 
Change in temporary differences  10,611  (7,101) 
Basis for payable taxes in the income statement  16,593  13,776 
Change in (utilisation of) tax losses carried forward  (3,900)  (1,537) 
Taxable income (basis for payable taxes in the balance sheet)  12,692  12,240 

Income tax expenses
Tax payable  3,157  3,087 
Tax correction earlier periods  0  (912) 
Tax payable on net assets  542  546 
Change in deferred tax  (2,247)  1,261 
Tax payable related to change in pension assumptions  (24)  (26) 
Accrual tax in foreign branches  673  512 
Tax expenses ordinary result  2,100  4,468 

Income tax payable
Tax at the beginning of the period  3,866  3,005 
Tax payable related to the period  4,396  4,101 
Tax payable related to change in pension assumptions  24  26 
Tax correction earlier periods  0  (921) 
Tax paid during the period  (3,109)  (2,195) 
Exchange adjustments  (211)  (150) 
Tax payable at the end of the period  4,965  3,866 

Deferred tax liability
Specification of tax effect resulting from temporary differences
Pension obligations  1,115  1,379 
Equipment  321  1,921 
Portfolio investments  (10,772)  (15,024) 
Foreign tax credit  0  1,921 
Other temporary differences  693  794 
Retained earnings*  (24,537)  (36,588) 
Total temporary differences  (33,182)  (47,160) 

Deferred tax liability, 25 per cent of total temporary differences  (8,295)  (11,790) 
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01.01.24 01.01.23
Amounts in USD 000's to 31.12.24 to 31.12.23

Deferred tax liability reconciliation
Deferred tax liability at beginning of the period  (11,790)  (10,854) 
Deferred tax expense related to the period  2,247  (1,261) 
Exchange adjustment  1,247  325 
Deferred tax liability at end of the period  (8,295)  (11,790) 

Reconciliation of the tax expense
Loss before tax as basis for tax calculation  1,299  18,661 
Calculated tax 25 per cent  325  4,665 
Tax expense  2,100  4,468 
Difference  (1,775)  197 

The difference consists of:
Tax related to change in pension assumptions recognised in OCI  24  0 
Tax payable on net assets  (542)  (546) 
Tax correction earlier periods  0  912 
Permanent differences not subject to tax  (1,171)  (554) 
Other differences  (87)  (10) 
Sum explained differences  (1,775)  197 

* As a result of changes in the Norwegian tax legislation for insurance companies, the part of retained earnings coming from contingency
reserve, is no longer recognized as tax deductible as it has been reclassified to other equity. Deferred tax related to this part of retained earnings 
was implemented in the Financial Statement as at 20.02.2018 and introduced as a temporary difference. For all insurance companies except 
Mutuals, the change in tax regime is implemented and included in the tax provisions as at 31.12.2024. A transition rule applies and 10% of the 
retained earnings coming from contingency reserve will be taxable each period, and as a consequence moved from deferred tax to payable tax.

Note 10 - Equipment

Accounting policy
Fixed assets are comprised of assets intended for long term ownership and use. Costs for maintenance are expensed as incurred. If the 
carrying value of a non-current asset exceeds the estimated recoverable amount, the asset is written down to the recoverable amount.

Art
As at As at

Amounts in USD 000's 31.12.24 31.12.23

Acquisition costs at the beginning of the period  4,369  4,174 
Net additions/(disposals)  856  194 
Costs at the end of the period  5,225  4,369 

Accumulated impairment at the beginning of the period  (745)  (745) 
Accumulated impairment at the end of the period  (745)  (745) 

Net book value at the end of the period  4,480  3,624 

Art is not subject to depreciation.
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Accounting policy
Recognition and initial measurement
Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date – the date on which the Association commits to purchase or sell 
the asset. Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or 
loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value, and transaction costs are expensed in the 
statement of comprehensive income. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments have expired or 
have been transferred and the Association has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. Debt securities valued at amortised cost 
are initially recognised at fair value including direct and incremental transaction costs and measured subsequently at amortised cost, using the 
effective interest method

Classification
The Association classifies its financial assets in the following categories: at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), fair value through other 
comprehensive income (FVOCI) or measured at amortised cost. The classification depends on the characteristics of the financial asset and the 
business model under which the financial asset is held.  Management determines the classification of the financial assets at initial recognition.

Financial assets are not reclassified after their initial recognition unless the Association changes its business model for managing financial assets, in 
which case all affected financial assets are reclassified on the first day of the first reporting period following the change in the business model.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at FVTPL are financial assets held for trading. A financial asset is classified in this category if acquired principally for the purpose of 
selling in the short-term and its contractual terms give rise it. Derivative financial investments are also valued at FVTPL. 

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
Financial asset are measured at FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL: 

– it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and
– its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest. 

Amortised Cost
Financial assets where management has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity other than those that the Association upon initial 
recognition designates as at FVTPL.

The financial asset must meet the following two criteria to be accounted for using amortised cost:
– Business model test: Financial assets are held with the purpose of collecting contractual cash flows.
– Cash flow characteristics test: The contractual cash flows are either principal or interest on principal, only. 

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOCI as described above are measured at FVTPL. 

Business model assessment 
For a majority of debt investments, the objective of the Association’s business model is to fund insurance contract liabilities. The Association 
undertakes significant buying and selling activity on a regular basis to rebalance its portfolio of assets and to ensure that contractual cash flows from 
the financial assets are sufficient to settle insurance contract liabilities. The Association determines that both collecting contractual cash flows as 
they come due and selling financial assets to maintain the desired asset profile are integral to achieving the business model’s objective. Certain 
debt securities are held in separate portfolios for long-term yield, although these can be sold to settle insurance contract liabilities. The Association 
considers that these securities are held within a business model whose objective is to sell assets.

The Association assesses the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is held for each portfolio of financial assets because this 
best reflects the way that the business is managed and information is provided to management. The information considered includes:

– the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in practice, including whether management’s 
strategy focuses on earning contractual interest income, maintaining a particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial 
assets to the duration of any related liabilities or expected cash outflows or realising cash flows through the sale of assets;

– how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Association’s management; the risks that affect the performance of 
the business model (and the financial assets held within that business model) and how those risks are managed;

Subsequent measurement and gains and losses
Unrealised gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the ‘Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss’ category are presented in 
the statement of comprehensive income within ‘Change in unrealised gain/loss on investments’ in the period in which they arise. Realised gains or 
losses are presented within ‘Gains on realisation of investments’. Dividends and interest income from financial assets at fair value through profit or 
loss is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income as part of ‘Interest and similar income’ when the right to receive payments is 
established. Dividends from investments are recognised when the Association has an unconditional right to receive the dividend. Dividend paid is 
recognised as a liability at the time when the General Meeting approves the payment of the dividend. 

For financial assets measured through other comprehensive income, interest income calculated using the effective interest method, dividends, 
foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Other net gains and losses are recognised in OCI and 
accumulated in the fair value reserve. On derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in OCI are reclassified to profit or loss.

Interest on investments held at amortised cost is included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income and reported as ‘Interest and 
similar income’. In the case of impairment, the impairment loss is reported as a deduction from the carrying value of the investment and recognised 
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Impairment of financial assets
The Association assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets 
is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses are incurred if there is a reasonable and supportable 
expectation of credit losses over the instrument’s expected life (ECL). The expectation is based on changes to credit ratings of financial assets, 
historical credit loss experience, and reasonable and supportable forecasts that affect the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or group 
of financial assets. The Association uses provision matrices for some financial assets measured at amortised costs to assess the estimated credit 
losses. Provision matrices are based on historical credit losses. 
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Loss allowances for ECL are presented as follows: 
– financial assets measured at amortised cost: the loss allowance is deducted from the gross carrying amount of the assets; and
– debt investments measured at FVOCI: the loss allowance does not reduce the carrying amount of the financial assets (which are 

measured at fair value) but gives rise to an equal and opposite gain in OCI
 
Offsetting financial investments
Financial assets and liabilities are offset, and the net amount reported in the balance sheet when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the 
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash balances and call deposits with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition that 
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in their fair value, and are used by the Association in the management of its short-term commitments. 
Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management are included as a component of cash and 
cash equivalents for the purposes of the statement of cash flows.

Determination of fair value
The following describes the methodologies and assumptions used to determine fair values. 

Financial investments at fair value through profit or loss
The fair value of financial assets classified as financial investments at fair value through profit or loss and the fair value of interest-bearing securities 
included is determined by reference to published price quotations in an active market. For unquoted financial assets the fair value has been 
estimated using a valuation technique based on assumptions that are supported by observable market prices. 

Assets for which fair value approximates carrying value
For financial assets and liabilities that have a short-term maturity, it is assumed that the carrying amounts approximate to their fair value. This 
assumption is also applied to demand deposits and savings accounts without a specific maturity.

Fair value hierarchy
The Association uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial investments by valuation technique. 

Financial investments in Level 1
The fair value of financial investments traded in active markets is based on quoted market prices at the balance sheet date. A market is regarded as 
active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service or regulatory agency, and 
those prices represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis. The quoted market price used for financial 
assets held by the Association is the last trade price (these investments are included in Level 1). US government bonds and other financial 
investments have been classified on Level 1 in the pricing hierarchy. 

Financial investments in Level 2
The fair value of financial investments that are not traded in an active market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is determined by using 
valuation techniques. These valuation techniques maximise the use of observable market data where it is available and rely as little as possible on 
entity specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an investment are observable, the investment is included in Level 2. 

Investments listed in the following have been classified on Level 2 in the pricing hierarchy: 
• Equity funds and interest-bearing securities and funds where fair values are determined by using quoted market prices of the assets where the 
funds are invested. Some of the funds using observable market data may also have a month-to-date return estimate, which is based on the prior 
month-end valuation statement provided by the fund administrator.
• Equity futures, equity options, interest futures, currency futures, currency forwards and interest rate swaps where fair values are determined on the 
basis of the price development on an underlying asset or instrument. All derivatives are priced by standard and well recognised methods. 

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the investment is included in Level 3.

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial investments include: 
• Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar investments; 
• The fair value of interest rate swaps is calculated as the present value of the estimated future cash flows based on observable yield curves; 
• The fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts is determined using forward exchange rates at the balance sheet date, with the resulting 
value discounted back to present value; 
• Other techniques, such as discounted cash flow analysis, are used to determine fair value for the remaining financial investments. 

Note that all of the resulting fair value estimates are included in Level 2 except for financial investments explained below.  

Financial investments in Level 3
There are no investments in level 3.
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As at As at
31.12.24 31.12.23

Quoted market 
prices

Observable 
market data

Non 
observable 

market data

Quoted market 
prices

Observable 
market data

Non 
observable 

market data

Amounts in USD 000's Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial investments 
Equities and investment funds  0  37,759  0  37,759  0  36,357  0  36,357 
Interest-bearing securities and funds  42,272  168,000  0  210,272  31,102  162,919  0  194,020 
Total financial investments  42,272  205,759  0  248,031  31,102  199,276  0  230,378 

The majority of investments held are subfunds of the Gard Unit Trust Fund, a legal fund structure established in Ireland. 

Equities and investment funds
Each subfund holds well diversified portfolios with different investment objectives, and the underlying holdings are common stocks traded on 
regional stock exchanges. The Association possesses only minority interests in quoted companies. 

Interest-bearing securities and funds
Funds classified as Interest-bearing securities and funds are predominantly invested in fixed income securities and money markets.

In the tables below all the listed financial investments are measured at fair value through profit and loss at recognition, and there have been no 
changes in valuation method based on the implementation of IFRS 9. 

As at
Amounts in USD 000's Investment profile Currency 31.12.24

Equity funds
Gard Global Multifactor Equity Fund Global equity USD 30,903
Gard Global Impact Equity Fund Global equity USD 6,856
Total Equity funds 37,759

Total Equities and investment funds 37,759

The part of Equity fund invested in quoted shares  37,759 

As at
Amounts in USD 000's Investment profile Currency 31.12.24

Interest-bearing securities
US Treasury Bills US Treasury bond USD 30,931
Total Interest-bearing securities 30,931

Interest-bearing funds
Gard Emerging Market Debt Fund Emerging market debt USD 10,165
Gard Global Bond Fund I Global aggregate bonds USD 53,142
Gard International Credit Bond Fund I Global corporate bonds USD 22,841
Gard Global Treasury Fund Government debt USD 13,469
Gard Strategic Global Bond Fund Global aggregate bonds USD 51,158
Gard US Credit Bond Fund I US corporate bonds USD 17,225
iShares Treasury ETF Government debt USD 11,341
Total Interest-bearing funds 179,341

Total Interest-bearing securities and funds 210,272

Government bonds
The Japan Ministry of Finance JPY 1,329
Total Government Bonds 1,329
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The Japan Government Bond is held as a deposit for the business underwritten in Japan. The bond is not subject for trade. The bond is held to 
maturity, and then replaced by a new bond to meet the local capital requirements. According to Norwegian GAAP the Bond is included in "Other 
assets" in the Balance Sheet.

Financial assets and liabilities at amortised cost

As at As at
Amounts in USD 000's 31.12.24 31.12.23

Financial assets at amortised cost
Cash and cash equivalents  108,381  100,778 
Other financial assets  8,238  8,074 
Receivables

Receivables from direct insurance operations  21,275  19,592 
Receivables from reinsurance operations  2,675  523 
Other receivables  20  612 

Total financial assets at amortised cost  140,589  129,579 

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
Payables

Payables arising out of direct insurance operations  7,346  6,688 
Payables arising out of reinsurance operations  4,839  2,627 
Payables arising out of reinsurance operations - group companies  10,163  7,618 
Payables to group companies  1,436  930 
Other payables  3,174  118 

Total financial liabilities at amortised cost  26,958  17,981 

Note 12 - Financial risk

Risk management framework 

The purpose of the risk management system is to ensure that material risks are managed in accordance with the Association’s corporate objectives 
and risk-bearing capacity. The risk management system consists of the following components:

Risk appetite and limits: Overall Risk Appetite and Comfort Zone (target range for capitalisation) are defined in accordance with risk-bearing 
capacity and corporate objectives. This cascades into limits by risk type and legal entities. This forms the basis for all risk management, monitoring 
and reporting. 

Risk policies: There are group policies describing the processes and procedures for managing material risk exposures. The purpose of the policies 
is to ensure consistent and adequate risk and capital management. 

Risk management cycle: Material risks are identified, assessed regularly, managed proactively, monitored regularly and reported to the relevant 
responsible body. Assessments are made on a quarterly basis as a minimum.

Main financial risks

Market risk
Market risk arises from the investment activities and the sensitivity of liabilities to changes in market price. The sensitivity analysis of investments 
assets aims to illustrate the risk of economic losses resulting from deviations in the value of assets caused by changes in observable market prices 
differing from expected values. The six main market risks selected for testing of sensitivity due to price changes are; 

Equity risk
The risk of economic losses resulting from deviations of market values of equities from expected values. The equity portfolio is well diversified, 
although with skewedness towards emerging markets and smaller companies compared to a global market capitalised benchmark. This is expected 
to generate a slightly higher return combined with higher volatility over time. The equity portfolio is being managed by a selection of specialist fund 
managers.

Interest rate risk
The risk of economic losses resulting from deviations in actual interest rates from expected interest rates. The term structure of interest- bearing 
assets is broadly matched to the expected duration of the liabilities. The sensitivity analysis for interest-bearing securities instruments is testing the 
portfolio’s interest rate sensitivity with a weighted average duration approach. Interest sensitive liabilities are not part of the analysis. 

ASSURANCEFORENINGEN GARD - GJENSIDIG -
Notes to the accounts

Note 11 - Financial investments (continued)

       Financial Statements for the period 1 January 2024 to 31 December 202431 of 41



This file is sealed with a digital signature.
The seal is a guarantee for the authenticity 
of the document.

Document ID: 
928CC77811194F0E96DD87FA545E714C

Alternatives risk
The risk that the actual return or performance relative to benchmark of investments due to active management decisions will be lower than 
expected. The sensitivity analysis for alternative risk is assigned to global alternative funds which aim to generate excess return by tactically 
adjusting asset allocation across a variety of asset classes. 

Real estate risk
The risk of economic losses resulting from deviations of actual values and/or income from real estate from those expected. The sensitivity analysis 
for real estate risk is performed on funds which represent the part that is strategically allocated to real estate. 

Currency risk
The risk of economic losses resulting from actual foreign exchange rates differing from expected foreign exchange rates. Foreign currency 
exposures are assumed to be reasonably matched across the balance sheet and managed with an emphasise on major currency exposures. The 
sensitivity analysis for foreign currencies only applies to investments assets and illustrates the impact on values given changes in exchange rates 
against USD. 

Inflation risk
The risk of a loss in the value of nominal assets or nominal cash flows due to a persistence of high inflation. This risk is most visible in fixed income 
assets and liabilities due to the tendency of inflation to be followed by higher interest rates. This risk is mitigated by monitoring the duration profile of 
the portfolio and by maintaining a diversified portfolio of assets whose values are impacted differently by inflation, including inflation protected 
securities and real assets. Although presented as a stand-alone market risk, the risk is also aligned with interest rate risk. 

The table below splits the balance sheet into the major currencies USD, EUR and GBP, and remaining currencies are grouped into Other. Note that 
investments held as shares/units in various fund structures are reported in base currency. The split deviates from underlying currency exposure that 
is used as input in the enterprise risk models.

Currency split balance sheet
As at As at

Amounts in USD 000's 31.12.24 31.12.23

Assets
USD  513,909  488,780 
EUR  3,868  4,375 
GBP  1,500  367 
Other  20,603  20,062 
Total assets  539,880  513,584 

Equity and liabilities
USD  503,021  476,655 
EUR  13,112  12,231 
GBP  5,824  6,139 
Other  17,924  18,559 
Total equity and liabilities  539,880  513,584 

Net asset exposure
USD  10,889  12,124 
EUR  (9,243)  (7,856) 
GBP  (4,324)  (5,771) 
Other  2,678  1,503 

Financial investment - sensitivity analysis
The analysis below is performed for reasonably possible movements in key market variables with all other variables held constant.

As at As at
Amounts in USD 000's 31.12.24 31.12.23

Impact on fixed income portfolio investments given an increase of 50 basis points  (4,778)  (3,319) 
Impact on equity portfolio given a 10 per cent drop in quoted market prices  (3,736)  (3,589) 
Impact on total investment portfolio given a change of 10 per cent in foreign exchange rates against USD  (6,783)  (7,538) 
Impact on fixed income portfolio investments given an increase of 100 basis points of inflation  (3,631)  (2,885) 

The sensitivity analysis assumes no correlation between equity price, property market and foreign currency rate risk. It also assumes that all other 
receivables and payables remain unchanged and that no management action is taken. The sensitivity analysis for inflation risk assumes that the 
inflation rate is intrinsically linked to interest rates. In general, interest rates are expected to increase when inflation is rising and vice versa. The 
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assumption for assessing the impact on fixed income investments from a change of 100 basis point of inflation is based on the historical relationship 
between changes in rates and inflation. The Association has no significant risk concentrations which are not in line with the overall investment 
guidelines set by the Gard’s Board of Directors. Any impact from risk tested in the table above is not, due to tax regulations, assumed to have any 
taxable impact. 

Credit risk
The risk of economic losses resulting from the default of third parties, split into: 

Credit default risk
The risk that actual credit losses will be higher than expected due to the failure of counterparties to meet their contractual debt obligation. 

Credit migration risk
The risk that a portfolio’s credit quality will materially deteriorate over time, without allowing a re-pricing of the constituent loans to compensate the 
creditor for the higher default risk being undertaken.

The credit migration risk is foremost related to our Interest-bearing securities and Interest-bearing funds. Any changes to credit quality will ultimately 
be reflected in the fair value assessment of the financial assets, where the majority of the Association’s investment in Interest-bearing securities and 
Interest-bearing funds are related to the fair value hierarcy Level 1 and Level 2. Management continuously follows up on the Interest-bearing 
securities and Interest-bearing funds to ensure an appropriate risk level in accordance with the Association’s established Investment strategy.
Counterparty default risk
The main sources of counterparty default risk are reinsurers technical provisions, cash deposits at banks and receivables towards reinsurers, 
policyholders, brokers and other receivables.

The credit exposure on the reinsurance program is in line with the guidelines of only accepting reinsurers with an A- or higher rating. 31 December 
2024. The Association is, however, faced with BBB rating exposure through the IG Pooling agreement. Among the twelve clubs, five have ratings 
lower than A-. The IG Pooling agreement has several mechanisms to mitigate counterpart default risk, disregard whether the event of default 
originates from IG Pooling partners or from external reinsurers. Estimated credit loss assessments are made when there are indicators of a loss 
event, not mitigated by the mechanisms in the IG Pooling agreement. 

Banks and custodians are in line with the guidelines with a credit rating of at least A/stable, except from minor amounts that have ratings of BB, in 
addition to not rated petty cash. Changes in credit rating for Banks and custodians is considered as an impairment indicator. Hence, credit ratings 
are followed up on a minimum annual basis and an estimated credit loss adjustments are made when necessary.    

The credit risk in respect of receivables is handled by policies and by close follow up. Gard continuously monitors the counterparty default risk in 
respect of receivables and makes necessary provisions for estimated credit losses in accordance with an established provision matrix. Outstanding 
receivables can be netted off against outstanding claims payments to reduce the risk of doubtful debts. 

The Association acknowledges that there is an increased counterparty risk towards Russian entities due to the different sanction regimes imposed. 
Although, due to the Association’s limited exposure towards these counterparties, this does not impose any material financial risk as at 
31 December 2024.

The tables below show the credit risk exposure as at  31 December 2024. Assets are classified according to the median rating amongst the three 
market leading providers, Standard & Poor’s, Moody’s and Fitch. Top rated assets are denoted with AAA rating and US long-term sovereign credit 
rating is equivalent to a AAA rating due to an applied median approach.
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Credit risk exposure in balance sheet
As at As at

Amounts in USD 000's 31.12.24 31.12.23

Interest-bearing securities and funds
AA  30,931  0 
Not rated  179,341  194,020 
Total interest-bearing securities and funds  210,272  194,020 

Reinsurers` share of gross claims reserve
AA  1,895  2,282 
A  119,076  119,032 
BB  543  0 
BBB  6,210  7,249 
Not rated  31  0 
Total reinsurers' share of gross claims reserve  127,755  128,564 

Receivables
AA  2,178  23 
A  579  1,174 
Not rated  21,213  19,530 
Total receivables  23,970  20,727 

Cash and cash equivalents
AAA  0  27,274 
AA  30,520  30,197 
A  77,861  43,306 
Total cash and cash equivalents  108,381  100,778 

Other financial assets presented in balance sheet*
AAA  6,909  6,587 
A  1,329  1,487 
Total other financial assets presented in balance sheet  8,238  8,074 

Other financials assets also include regulatory and contractually required deposits that is considered encumbered assets amounting to USD 8.2 
million as at 31 December 2024 (USD 8.1 million as at 31 December 2023).

 * Includes loan to subsidiaries and other financial assets.

Age analysis of receivables after provisions for bad debt
As at As at

Amounts in USD 000's 31.12.24 31.12.23

Not due  6,349  3,521 
0-60 days  10,378  10,690 
61-90 days  1,297  905 
Above 90 days  6,672  6,450 
Provision for bad debt  (725)  (839) 
Total receivables  23,970  20,727 

Impaired receivables
As at 31 December 2024 there are impaired receivables of USD 0.7 million (31 December 2023 USD 0.8 million), related to past due. No collateral 
is held as security for the impaired receivables, but the receivables can be deducted from future claim payments if any. Impairment allowance is 
included in ‘Other insurance related expenses’.
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Analysis of provision for bad debt
As at As at

Amounts in USD 000's 31.12.24 31.12.23

Balance as at the beginning of the period  839  1,536 
Provision for receivables impairment  114  (146) 
Receivables written off during the period as uncollectable  282  (38) 
Unused amounts reversed  (508)  (513) 
Balance as at the end of the period  725  839 

The creation and release of provisions for impaired receivables has been included in ‘Other insurance related expenses’ in the statement of 
comprehensive income. Amounts charged to the allowance account are generally written off, when there is no expectation of recovering additional 
cash.

Liquidity risk
The risk that cash and other liquid assets are insufficient to meet financial obligations when they fall due. In respect of catastrophic events there is 
also a liquidity risk associated with the timing differences between gross cash outflows and expected reinsurance recoveries. Liquidity risk arises 
primarily due to the unpredictability of the timing of payment of insurance liabilities or when market depth is insufficient to absorb the required 
volumes of assets to be sold, resulting in asset sale at a discount.

Maturity profile
The following tables set out the maturity profile of liabilities combining amounts expected to be recovered within one year, between one and five 
years and more than five years. 

The Association maintains highly marketable financial investments and diverse assets that can be liquidated in the event of an unforeseen 
interruption of cash flow. This gives a presentation of the maturity profile on the payables.

As at
Within 1 1-5 More than No maturity 31.12.24

Amounts in USD 000's year years 5 years date Total

Gross claims reserve  100,877  198,286  43,113  0  342,276 
Other liabilities  4,965  0  8,295  1,115  14,375 
Payables, accruals and deferred income  26,093  0  0  0  26,093 
Other payables  3,174  0  0  0  3,174 

As at
Within 1 1-5 More than No maturity 31.12.23

Amounts in USD 000's year years 5 years date Total

Gross claims reserve  102,133  190,540  31,044  0  323,717 
Other liabilities  3,866  0  11,790  1,379  17,035 
Payables, accruals and deferred income  19,865  0  0  0  19,865 
Other payables  118  0  0  0  118 

ASSURANCEFORENINGEN GARD - GJENSIDIG -
Notes to the accounts

Note 12 - Financial risk (continued)

       Financial Statements for the period 1 January 2024 to 31 December 202435 of 41



This file is sealed with a digital signature.
The seal is a guarantee for the authenticity 
of the document.

Document ID: 
928CC77811194F0E96DD87FA545E714C

Accounting Policy
Employees are covered by pension plans which comply with Norwegian laws and regulations.The Association has defined benefit pension plans 
only.

The liability recognised in the balance sheet in respect of the defined benefit pension plan is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at 
the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by independent actuaries 
using a straight-line earnings method. The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash 
outflows using interest rates of high-quality corporate bonds that are denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid, and that have
terms to maturity approximating to the terms of the related pension obligation. Employer’s contribution is included in the gross pension liability.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are charged or credited to equity in 
Statement of comprehensive income in the period in which they arise. Past-service costs are recognised immediately in technical result.

Pension obligations
The Association has defined benefit plans covering one retired employees. These contracts are financed through the Association's operations. 
Part time employees working with the Association are included in the pension scheme in Gard AS. This pension scheme covers the required 
occupational pension in accordance with the Norwegian Pension Act.

Defined benefit plans entitle the employees to a defined level of future pension payments. Such future pension payments are mainly dependent 
on number of contributory years and the salary level on retirement.

For defined benefit plans actuarial calculations are made with regard to pension liabilities at the end of the year, and resulting changes in 
pension liabilities are charged to the income statement.

Actuarial calculations of pension liabilities have been prepared as at 31 December 2024. These calculations show that the Association has 
pension liabilities amounting to USD 1.1 million (USD 1.4 million as at 31 December 2023).

Pension costs and pension liabilities are accounted for in accordance with IAS19R.

As at As at
Amounts in USD 000's 31.12.24 31.12.23

Pension cost
Defined benefit pension plans
Interest expense on earned pension  36  32 
Past service cost - curtailment/plan amendment  (114)  0 
Net pension cost earning related plan  (78)  32 

Total pension cost charged to the statement of comprehensive income  (78)  32 

Changes in pension assumptions charged to other comprehensive income
Change in pension assumptions  101  97 
Income tax related to change in pension assumptions  (25)  (24) 

Liabilities according to the actuarial calculations
Pension obligation gross  1,115  1,379 
Net pension obligation at the end of the period  1,115  1,379 

Financial assumptions Per cent Per cent
Discount rate  3.90  3.10 
Assumed annual salary regulation  4.00  3.50 
Assumed pension increase  2.25  2.25 
Assumed regulations of public pensions  3.75  3.25 
Assumed yield on funds  3.90  3.10 

G is a base rate used as the basis for calculating benefits. G is adjusted annually and is approved each year by Norwegian parliament.
The last time G was updated was May 2024. As of 31 December 2024 G equals NOK 124,028 (USD 10,921).
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As at As at
Amounts in USD 000's 31.12.24 31.12.23

Direct and received premium  18,712  17,925 
Direct and received premium through broker  2,506  1,672 
Not closed premium  41  (7) 
Claims related debtors, co-insurers  741  840 
Provision for bad debts  (725)  (839) 
Receivables from direct insurance operations  21,275  19,592 

Note 15 - Cash and cash equivalents

Accounting policy
Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand and deposits held at call with banks, brokers and fund managers, and money market funds.

Cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents include restricted cash amounting to USD  0.021 million as at 31 December 2024 (USD 0.021 million as at 31 December 
2023). Cash and cash equivalents also include regulatory and contractually required cash deposits that is considered restricted cash amounting to 
USD 73.7 million as at 31 December 2024 (USD 58.1 million as at 31 December 2023). 

There are no Letter of Credit, Guarantees or other instruments included in the balance sheet. A Letter of Credit in the amount of HKD 545 million 
equal to USD 70.2 million has been issued in relation to insurance licence of the Hong Kong branches.
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As at
31.12.24

Amounts in USD 000's Solvency II Balance Sheet Differences

Assets
Reinsurance recoverables
Reinsurers' share of gross premium reserve  0  15,384  (15,384) 
Reinsurers' share of expected cash flow for unexpired cover net of reinsurer commission provision  8,328  0  8,328 
Reinsurers' share of gross claims reserves  127,755  127,755  0 
Discounting effect of reinsurers' share of gross claims reserves  (7,136)  0  (7,136) 
Reinsurers' share of Bound but not incepted (BBNI) - net and discounted  (2,532)  0  (2,532) 
Reinsurance recoverables  126,416  143,139  (16,724) 

Liabilities
Technical provisions
Gross premium reserves  0  36,147  (36,147) 
Gross expected cash flow for unexpired cover net of commission provision  24,808  0  24,808 
Gross claims reserves  342,276  342,276  0 
Discounting effect of gross claims reserves  (22,078)  0  (22,078) 
Bound but not incepted (BBNI) - net and discounted  (5,721)  0  (5,721) 
ULAE future claims discounted  4,710  0  4,710 
Risk Margin  4,825  0  4,825 
Technical provisions  348,821  378,423  (29,603) 

Reinsurance recoverables from non-life excluding health
Reinsurers’ share of expected cash flow for unexpired cover net of reinsurer commission provision claims, covers the combined ratio share of 
reinsurers’ share of gross premium reserves less reinsurance commission provisions.

Discounting effect of reinsurers’ share of gross claims reserve shows the reduction in reinsurers’ share of gross claims reserve, in order to arrive at 
net present value of the reserves as at the balance sheet date.

Reinsurers’ share of Bound but not incepted (BBNI) – net, covers the net of reinsurers’ share of premiums, claims and commission based on 
agreements with customers entered into but not incepted as at the balance sheet date.

Losses occurring during is covering expected cash flow of extended reinsurance in order to align the coverage period with the premium reserve 
period.

Technical provisions - non-life
Bound but not incepted (BBNI) – net is covering the net of gross premiums, claims and commission from customer agreements entered into, but not 
incepted as at the balance sheet date. Gross expected cash flow for unexpired cover net of commission provision is covering the combined ratio 
share of gross premium reserve less commission provisions. This represents the expected claims costs related to the gross premiums reserve as at 
balance sheet date. 

Discounting effect of gross claims reserve is showing the reduction in gross claims reserve, in order to arrive at net present value of the reserves as 
at the balance sheet date.

The risk margin is calculated as a 6% charge on future annual cash flows and is based on Solvency Capital Requirement in respect of non-
hedgeable risks. The risk margin represents the cost of capital an insurance company would require to take on the obligations of a given company. 
Other equity is covering retained reserves to meet unforeseen fluctuations in claims exposure, possible catastrophes and extraordinary claims 
patterns that fall within the Association’s liabilities. For balance sheet amounts, other equity is included in the technical provisions, while other equity 
is included in Excess of assets over liabilities for Solvency II amounts.
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Assuranceforeningen Gard - gjensidig - is required to maintain minimum capital and surplus equal to the Solvency Capital Requirement ("SCR")
under Solvency II. The statutory capital and surplus for Assuranceforeningen Gard - gjensidig - include supplementary calls based on gross
written premium for the last three open policy years. The SCR, which is part of the Solvency II reporting package, will not be filed with the
Norwegian Financial Supervisory Authority (Finanstilsynet) until after presentation of the financial statements (April 2025 for the
31 December 2024 figures). As a result, preliminary figures are included as at 31 December 2024 and final figures are included as at 31 December 
2023.

As at As at
Amounts in USD 000's 31.12.24 31.12.23

Own funds
Share premium account  0  118,634 
Reconciliation reserve  116,334  (3,488) 
Excess of assets over liabilities  116,334  115,147 

Tier 1 - Unrestricted  116,334  115,147 
Total basic own funds / (equal to Excess of assets over liabilities)  116,334  115,147 

Tier 2 - Supplementary calls - Available  265,586  241,543 
Tier 2 - Supplementary calls - Eligible  57,095  48,196 
Total ancillary own funds  265,586  241,543 

Total available own funds to meet the SCR  381,920  356,690 
Total available own funds to meet the MCR  116,334  115,147 
Total eligible own funds to meet the SCR  173,429  163,342 
Total eligible own funds to meet the MCR  116,334  115,147 
SCR  114,190  96,391 
MCR  42,166  37,200 
Ratio of eligible own funds to SCR 152 % 169%
Ratio of eligible own funds to MCR 276 % 310%

Minimum Capital Requirement (MCR)
Linear MCR  42,166  37,200 
SCR  114,190  96,391 
MCR cap (45% of SCR)  51,385  43,376 
MCR floor (25% of SCR)  28,547  24,098 
Combined MCR  42,166  37,200 
Absolute floor of the MCR  4,353  4,248 
MCR  42,166  37,200 

Solvency Capital Requirement (SCR)
Market risk  6,503  9,179 
Counterparty default risk  19,301  18,018 
Non-life underwriting risk  138,141  108,331 
Diversification  (38,214)  (35,250) 
Basic SCR  125,732  100,278 

Calculation of SCR
Adj - Loss Absorbing Capacity of Deferred Tax  (21,862)  (13,746) 
Operational risk  10,320  9,859 
SCR  114,190  96,391 
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The following table sets out changes to the presentation of the balance sheet as at 31 December 2023, as described in note 2.3.

Reported Earlier reported
As at As at

Amounts in USD 000's 31.12.23 31.12.23

Investments
Financial investments at fair value through profit or loss
Interest-bearing securities and funds 194,020 221,294
Other financial investments 0 2
Total investments 230,378 257,653

Other assets
Cash and cash equivalents 100,778 73,501
Total other assets 112,475 85,199

The cash flow statement has been restated as shown in the table below.

Reported Earlier reported
As at As at

Amounts in USD 000's 31.12.23 31.12.23

Cash flow from operating activities
Financial investments 26,971 (305)
Net cash flow from operating activities 22,718 (4,558)

Net change in cash and cash equivalents 22,524 (4,752)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 100,778 73,501
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MIIGJTCCBA2gAwIBAgIKLGFDyfE7zOOEkjANBgkqhkiG9w0BAQsFADBoMQswCQYDVQQGEwJOTzEY

MBYGA1UEYQwPTlRSTk8tOTgzMTYzMzI3MRMwEQYDVQQKDApCdXlwYXNzIEFTMSowKAYDVQQDDCFC

dXlwYXNzIENsYXNzIDMgQ0EgRzIgU1QgQnVzaW5lc3MwHhcNMjMwMzIzMTIyMjUwWhcNMjYwMzIz

MjI1OTAwWjBiMQswCQYDVQQGEwJOTzEUMBIGA1UECgwLU0lHTklDQVQgQVMxDTALBgNVBAsMBEVV

MDExFDASBgNVBAMMC1NJR05JQ0FUIEFTMRgwFgYDVQRhDA9OVFJOTy05ODk1ODQwMjIwggGiMA0G

CSqGSIb3DQEBAQUAA4IBjwAwggGKAoIBgQDT+e2ytl/lLJsYOJp6OgRWzxSeWWyEgtIn6IOHVlPD

H+Km8G1EZhijANKC/TzvwccewlU8ZjhYvDbRWjj14RbuKMgKpDyBE+GBOIOfVnlN09niEEBklqBK

aBVKMW+zcNP9KJgDBwWi8j0y+YrgQhBlwuwZBPluYvVmQXd1CXCl4rsPYw5yG5gHutoozFC87wQY

aNhp26fl/tgtWfaX+PO+wHULN/qaNe7m7r5SSaPNvikPQpplA+EU2W2tGoYiCzWgRlvNjSJK/ZXD

Mqi3dbB4TG0lgeQYoopHOCU1etwxEbX8LRAoXHSyMiq7vmSeM2uxpuE/X4oEMKhdp691JrFy5Z/z

jUNtN6hCEjQVyv0cmTDwiNWwZHW6DDUn73MB8pMd+olTn69aX5N3NgxdkQ0N5wC+/L+coXikqet0

DKS+36p2/ZINZbirWhsbU+Q24oWd5NJQmkpGNovmtBLrvpnpVEkC6kj/+9WC6AVUXDW/sTTSOCWv

iq2ma3e5QcT7YWECAwEAAaOCAVUwggFRMAkGA1UdEwQCMAAwHwYDVR0jBBgwFoAUgUWcKZVmODft

O1ROjjLlliF51WQwHQYDVR0OBBYEFCNLqumKRlltPhDr5kfkDjTl+jcCMA4GA1UdDwEB/wQEAwIG

QDAfBgNVHSAEGDAWMAoGCGCEQgEaAQMCMAgGBgQAj3oBATA7BgNVHR8ENDAyMDCgLqAshipodHRw

Oi8vY3JsLmJ1eXBhc3NjYS5jb20vQlBDbDNDYUcyU1RCUy5jcmwwbwYIKwYBBQUHAQEEYzBhMCcG

CCsGAQUFBzABhhtodHRwOi8vb2NzcGJzLmJ1eXBhc3NjYS5jb20wNgYIKwYBBQUHMAKGKmh0dHA6

Ly9jcnQuYnV5cGFzc2NhLmNvbS9CUENsM0NhRzJTVEJTLmNlcjAlBggrBgEFBQcBAwQZMBcwFQYI

KwYBBQUHCwIwCQYHBACL7EkBAjANBgkqhkiG9w0BAQsFAAOCAgEA03rR/QRAXLiXmnUSU1agOREv

zrt9cv6Qv19nevwULAyRIm3OdhsENbfvBI5KIEMShPLAK5csSGo1AhT3I8MhNQ29IQb1SaGfsmlL

MEsywmGq63bGZlwljK1rc3ZFCIsJjzdUV16x3CYYxNm7pkIgMcl9Fv5ayfiwtm1pBb3KUEaOs4rp

nEd0L2q24eUjhLQjjExSLHPtQvsi09bzvUjD+0yyz+8nnBRyH6axk3Brcn2Ng4nKJ+Do/1La/dpw

YisJM+aVHD2tdIld+Opr0wOKX3tYSpRNQ3VfehN7U0oiQpTsdv4vkI63jj3q5q0M3tg7r+b7XKkN

LXsE/bqCAEZ3f9SYiimO6Sm56BnNm2Xzi7ACqcgh086/6kS1YC5eojYl9unrngWexwPG4uxZpjJi

BY4UpP15Os0vxMAQqHWLhfm+MObySEGd/+UwssM7XAVOsrcSP3MrB7AKaLRafrXbUrww/x80/Lrq

Y5Dg6RCiJlpPNl9TNOGvkubMEWaIjuWtiF1ONguymDXG6iHt/nvS/fIu/D1fKt//48gPB+fGJiPo

vCNmVASrHCR5nbJXvvvqfexHLKcpUo+ND0pYuLeE8e4K59JRXKAv/o2cFkJwEgKZEGNb5KdEhFW7

eRxUFMt/WBMkDH/zmzRtBCNd8GIo4ZC7EgqmapICD+/unjssq0Y=



     2025-03-24T15:00:04.492+01:00     aIMzaloRUky954rW4rY/GSsm8poYA//XgAIP+hTGDmo=  cn=Buypass Class 3 CA G2 ST Business,o=Buypass AS,2.5.4.97=NTRNO-983163327,c=NO 209578344121924218750098    ReBYMc3awfK5bcjKVGIINMh2Sen/07Jtfa0q0H+AcjI=  cn=Buypass Class 3 Root CA G2 ST,o=Buypass AS,2.5.4.97=NTRNO-983163327,c=NO 1015416679773832303832456    +MFsa0/UXLBnLhZYK4gF8cr9DEjYZvTtiVsw41Kp+qY=  cn=Buypass Class 3 Root CA G2 ST,o=Buypass AS,2.5.4.97=NTRNO-983163327,c=NO 957802745516833431383684   text/xml    MIIGezCCBGOgAwIBAgILANcF2TfqKJjzbYgwDQYJKoZIhvcNAQENBQAwZDELMAkGA1UEBhMCTk8x MIIFtjCCA56gAwIBAgILAMrSl0OXH9IoboQwDQYJKoZIhvcNAQENBQAwZDELMAkGA1UEBhMCTk8x   MIIHLwoBAKCCBygwggckBgkrBgEFBQcwAQEEggcVMIIHETCB/aFYMFYxCzAJBgNVBAYTAk5PMRMw 
     
         
             Grotmoll, Turid
             9578-5997-4-1022
             NO
        
         
             application/pdf
             Ass.Gard - Financial statements 311224.pdf
             SsbCmVWkjkmHsyj7E+zfQpuyj59ZilqEg7SKrNQsO+A=
        
         
             Signicat Sign
             XML Signature
             2025-03-25T08:23:30.344+01:00
        
    
     urn:signicat:signaturepolicy:authbased-ltv:2.2
     
         
         BANKID
         
             I have read the attached documents in my Admincontrol portal and hereby accept and approve of their contents with my signature.
        
    
     
         
             
             
             
             
             nbid-nonin-sign
             3
             admincontrol.com
        
         
             
             
             
        
         
             928CC77811194F0E96DD87FA545E714C
        
    
     
         
             
                 2025-03-25T08:22:55.988+01:00
                 started-signature-session
                 
                     77.16.216.71
                     Mozilla/5.0 (Macintosh; Intel Mac OS X 10_15_7) AppleWebKit/605.1.15 (KHTML, like Gecko)
                     The signer started the signature session by doing an HTTP request to the TSP server.
                
            
             
                 2025-03-25T08:23:01.229+01:00
                 presented-document-to-signer
                 
                     The TSP presented the document to the signer.
                     Ass.Gard - Financial statements 311224.pdf
                     SsbCmVWkjkmHsyj7E+zfQpuyj59ZilqEg7SKrNQsO+A=
                     SHA-256
                
            
             
                 2025-03-25T08:23:04.399+01:00
                 signer-consented-to-document-content
                 
                     The signer approved of the contents of the document.
                     I have read and understood the contents of the documents listed above and I am ready to sign
                
            
        
         
             
                 2025-03-25T08:23:30.344+01:00
                 verified-saml-response
                 
                     The SAML Response attributes from the authentication was verified.
                
            
        
    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 DbYlFX5mg211i6z4qqZloVraw/zd4l3BP/It1XCRxo4=

 
 
 

 
 NyBRIkGaVITYmfH6zfHqugb3ndL2ftKfEUz5MFqLHB0=


 
IXYbS2+jYcL/ot6S23fu8cgHECEvl9y700fk3K1WjpuMokQO9WGBZDmSW8XirqhplqIuUWwAVP9I

50rqBwuiPY72yY/Z/h3vZPYjxoK4bQTwUKfGQjoATlBkgMgO+G11L65DzeDodrMpT4hz4LzzZbF7

Mfm0PCQQLQn+lo11yxBIbFh1mIMC/vf3pnRzQ8QLZUBSWTSPjtKTOBqp105pLfJ4i5xnmUEayD5F

8ADFiNjqOo+vDAH18ANmZnHk2tIGqPL7gix1D8e3gxf80/Mn3tcmqejj1V3zmpeqQ0bLb6iIRksW

Eo+YAaLQ9rCg/oyRfN2Bb6iuhzCIxZyQ02/zIJUC/dyIg5NpOdZnMcgGpD1Lv/1hRo2H/3+gyQMh

5fS37LgmBRgUCbGstSpug45EaSQ7S/fBe8FJiynF/70bbcALeKKlUSivNhnjH2vPkr0y/ZFsrLDd

eP1nZsQNyS1eFxFKCOTTjBN2oPFHx8zdlBFSAi+BC7kg3Bej/obxM8GI

 
 
 
MIIGJTCCBA2gAwIBAgIKLGFDyfE7zOOEkjANBgkqhkiG9w0BAQsFADBoMQswCQYDVQQGEwJOTzEY

MBYGA1UEYQwPTlRSTk8tOTgzMTYzMzI3MRMwEQYDVQQKDApCdXlwYXNzIEFTMSowKAYDVQQDDCFC

dXlwYXNzIENsYXNzIDMgQ0EgRzIgU1QgQnVzaW5lc3MwHhcNMjMwMzIzMTIyMjUwWhcNMjYwMzIz

MjI1OTAwWjBiMQswCQYDVQQGEwJOTzEUMBIGA1UECgwLU0lHTklDQVQgQVMxDTALBgNVBAsMBEVV

MDExFDASBgNVBAMMC1NJR05JQ0FUIEFTMRgwFgYDVQRhDA9OVFJOTy05ODk1ODQwMjIwggGiMA0G

CSqGSIb3DQEBAQUAA4IBjwAwggGKAoIBgQDT+e2ytl/lLJsYOJp6OgRWzxSeWWyEgtIn6IOHVlPD

H+Km8G1EZhijANKC/TzvwccewlU8ZjhYvDbRWjj14RbuKMgKpDyBE+GBOIOfVnlN09niEEBklqBK

aBVKMW+zcNP9KJgDBwWi8j0y+YrgQhBlwuwZBPluYvVmQXd1CXCl4rsPYw5yG5gHutoozFC87wQY

aNhp26fl/tgtWfaX+PO+wHULN/qaNe7m7r5SSaPNvikPQpplA+EU2W2tGoYiCzWgRlvNjSJK/ZXD

Mqi3dbB4TG0lgeQYoopHOCU1etwxEbX8LRAoXHSyMiq7vmSeM2uxpuE/X4oEMKhdp691JrFy5Z/z

jUNtN6hCEjQVyv0cmTDwiNWwZHW6DDUn73MB8pMd+olTn69aX5N3NgxdkQ0N5wC+/L+coXikqet0

DKS+36p2/ZINZbirWhsbU+Q24oWd5NJQmkpGNovmtBLrvpnpVEkC6kj/+9WC6AVUXDW/sTTSOCWv

iq2ma3e5QcT7YWECAwEAAaOCAVUwggFRMAkGA1UdEwQCMAAwHwYDVR0jBBgwFoAUgUWcKZVmODft

O1ROjjLlliF51WQwHQYDVR0OBBYEFCNLqumKRlltPhDr5kfkDjTl+jcCMA4GA1UdDwEB/wQEAwIG

QDAfBgNVHSAEGDAWMAoGCGCEQgEaAQMCMAgGBgQAj3oBATA7BgNVHR8ENDAyMDCgLqAshipodHRw

Oi8vY3JsLmJ1eXBhc3NjYS5jb20vQlBDbDNDYUcyU1RCUy5jcmwwbwYIKwYBBQUHAQEEYzBhMCcG

CCsGAQUFBzABhhtodHRwOi8vb2NzcGJzLmJ1eXBhc3NjYS5jb20wNgYIKwYBBQUHMAKGKmh0dHA6

Ly9jcnQuYnV5cGFzc2NhLmNvbS9CUENsM0NhRzJTVEJTLmNlcjAlBggrBgEFBQcBAwQZMBcwFQYI

KwYBBQUHCwIwCQYHBACL7EkBAjANBgkqhkiG9w0BAQsFAAOCAgEA03rR/QRAXLiXmnUSU1agOREv

zrt9cv6Qv19nevwULAyRIm3OdhsENbfvBI5KIEMShPLAK5csSGo1AhT3I8MhNQ29IQb1SaGfsmlL

MEsywmGq63bGZlwljK1rc3ZFCIsJjzdUV16x3CYYxNm7pkIgMcl9Fv5ayfiwtm1pBb3KUEaOs4rp

nEd0L2q24eUjhLQjjExSLHPtQvsi09bzvUjD+0yyz+8nnBRyH6axk3Brcn2Ng4nKJ+Do/1La/dpw

YisJM+aVHD2tdIld+Opr0wOKX3tYSpRNQ3VfehN7U0oiQpTsdv4vkI63jj3q5q0M3tg7r+b7XKkN

LXsE/bqCAEZ3f9SYiimO6Sm56BnNm2Xzi7ACqcgh086/6kS1YC5eojYl9unrngWexwPG4uxZpjJi

BY4UpP15Os0vxMAQqHWLhfm+MObySEGd/+UwssM7XAVOsrcSP3MrB7AKaLRafrXbUrww/x80/Lrq

Y5Dg6RCiJlpPNl9TNOGvkubMEWaIjuWtiF1ONguymDXG6iHt/nvS/fIu/D1fKt//48gPB+fGJiPo

vCNmVASrHCR5nbJXvvvqfexHLKcpUo+ND0pYuLeE8e4K59JRXKAv/o2cFkJwEgKZEGNb5KdEhFW7

eRxUFMt/WBMkDH/zmzRtBCNd8GIo4ZC7EgqmapICD+/unjssq0Y=



     2025-03-25T08:23:30.850+01:00     aIMzaloRUky954rW4rY/GSsm8poYA//XgAIP+hTGDmo=  cn=Buypass Class 3 CA G2 ST Business,o=Buypass AS,2.5.4.97=NTRNO-983163327,c=NO 209578344121924218750098    ReBYMc3awfK5bcjKVGIINMh2Sen/07Jtfa0q0H+AcjI=  cn=Buypass Class 3 Root CA G2 ST,o=Buypass AS,2.5.4.97=NTRNO-983163327,c=NO 1015416679773832303832456    +MFsa0/UXLBnLhZYK4gF8cr9DEjYZvTtiVsw41Kp+qY=  cn=Buypass Class 3 Root CA G2 ST,o=Buypass AS,2.5.4.97=NTRNO-983163327,c=NO 957802745516833431383684   text/xml    MIIGezCCBGOgAwIBAgILANcF2TfqKJjzbYgwDQYJKoZIhvcNAQENBQAwZDELMAkGA1UEBhMCTk8x MIIFtjCCA56gAwIBAgILAMrSl0OXH9IoboQwDQYJKoZIhvcNAQENBQAwZDELMAkGA1UEBhMCTk8x   MIIHLwoBAKCCBygwggckBgkrBgEFBQcwAQEEggcVMIIHETCB/aFYMFYxCzAJBgNVBAYTAk5PMRMw 
     
         
             Eilertsen, Trond
             9578-5994-4-467655
             NO
        
         
             application/pdf
             Ass.Gard - Financial statements 311224.pdf
             SsbCmVWkjkmHsyj7E+zfQpuyj59ZilqEg7SKrNQsO+A=
        
         
             Signicat Sign
             XML Signature
             2025-03-26T10:54:23.591+01:00
        
    
     urn:signicat:signaturepolicy:authbased-ltv:2.2
     
         
         BANKID
         
             I have read the attached documents in my Admincontrol portal and hereby accept and approve of their contents with my signature.
        
    
     
         
             
             
             
             
             nbid-nonin-sign
             3
             admincontrol.com
        
         
             
             
             
        
         
             928CC77811194F0E96DD87FA545E714C
        
    
     
         
             
                 2025-03-26T10:53:21.517+01:00
                 started-signature-session
                 
                     193.71.28.28
                     Mozilla/5.0 (Windows NT 10.0; Win64; x64) AppleWebKit/537.36 (KHTML, like Gecko) Chrome/134.0.0.0 Safari/537.36 Edg/134.0.0.0
                     The signer started the signature session by doing an HTTP request to the TSP server.
                
            
             
                 2025-03-26T10:53:40.252+01:00
                 presented-document-to-signer
                 
                     The TSP presented the document to the signer.
                     Ass.Gard - Financial statements 311224.pdf
                     SsbCmVWkjkmHsyj7E+zfQpuyj59ZilqEg7SKrNQsO+A=
                     SHA-256
                
            
             
                 2025-03-26T10:53:48.345+01:00
                 signer-consented-to-document-content
                 
                     The signer approved of the contents of the document.
                     I have read and understood the contents of the documents listed above and I am ready to sign
                
            
        
         
             
                 2025-03-26T10:54:23.591+01:00
                 verified-saml-response
                 
                     The SAML Response attributes from the authentication was verified.
                
            
        
    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 NhPF90149+3V3L0JwAj5HIySwH0iy5WYIKxDjhY2JWk=

 
 
 

 
 2O/jyMnJQZ/VADM+3PF2E9U2MVgfH/iZ4qnhzecrafc=


 
vwuZ6giHjVTYfWS1ZfT5VSipMlX2DVPdlkgfwTpcG8czoysN7BgX2O6I4tF2zAReP55/jCzyBJJn

oQ6u2e6zqijILig/TrmkthuMNqPlEa3K13qiPzfs3LZZ0O5NwtB5R1JxLcvSVfXYRZ5vyS4FztMo

87Hcp7543qcwOj1snPcZT9so1GdH0UezPINKtXWlu4xx6fbO5yBY60xVRBbmEejj4oit2NlpSJvJ

y8RX1gRi0Ky9R3bSK70QWQOsX+kxis5XOUcnWvXs/m2lY27I/WjR1YgdERWeZFM39Z4ofrdKVGxE

keQ1gGHKDmj71ZjwQNh1WOl6SUJalJRTdChKzLrztPIQmlfs9K/PcDl+lemx8/QGXIbZXct1VXEG

3StC4yymB7n+TFULFvypr1rk77JBgL7Zn1OL0VD895HHtCb2gru5gap7R3PR51ixCgWYw1wnsUsF

Vq4lyQb7nCkmWR9hPMYMSwql967g6iTaEjCSALr9b9bO9wLlOvag871k

 
 
 
MIIGJTCCBA2gAwIBAgIKLGFDyfE7zOOEkjANBgkqhkiG9w0BAQsFADBoMQswCQYDVQQGEwJOTzEY

MBYGA1UEYQwPTlRSTk8tOTgzMTYzMzI3MRMwEQYDVQQKDApCdXlwYXNzIEFTMSowKAYDVQQDDCFC

dXlwYXNzIENsYXNzIDMgQ0EgRzIgU1QgQnVzaW5lc3MwHhcNMjMwMzIzMTIyMjUwWhcNMjYwMzIz

MjI1OTAwWjBiMQswCQYDVQQGEwJOTzEUMBIGA1UECgwLU0lHTklDQVQgQVMxDTALBgNVBAsMBEVV

MDExFDASBgNVBAMMC1NJR05JQ0FUIEFTMRgwFgYDVQRhDA9OVFJOTy05ODk1ODQwMjIwggGiMA0G

CSqGSIb3DQEBAQUAA4IBjwAwggGKAoIBgQDT+e2ytl/lLJsYOJp6OgRWzxSeWWyEgtIn6IOHVlPD

H+Km8G1EZhijANKC/TzvwccewlU8ZjhYvDbRWjj14RbuKMgKpDyBE+GBOIOfVnlN09niEEBklqBK

aBVKMW+zcNP9KJgDBwWi8j0y+YrgQhBlwuwZBPluYvVmQXd1CXCl4rsPYw5yG5gHutoozFC87wQY

aNhp26fl/tgtWfaX+PO+wHULN/qaNe7m7r5SSaPNvikPQpplA+EU2W2tGoYiCzWgRlvNjSJK/ZXD

Mqi3dbB4TG0lgeQYoopHOCU1etwxEbX8LRAoXHSyMiq7vmSeM2uxpuE/X4oEMKhdp691JrFy5Z/z

jUNtN6hCEjQVyv0cmTDwiNWwZHW6DDUn73MB8pMd+olTn69aX5N3NgxdkQ0N5wC+/L+coXikqet0

DKS+36p2/ZINZbirWhsbU+Q24oWd5NJQmkpGNovmtBLrvpnpVEkC6kj/+9WC6AVUXDW/sTTSOCWv

iq2ma3e5QcT7YWECAwEAAaOCAVUwggFRMAkGA1UdEwQCMAAwHwYDVR0jBBgwFoAUgUWcKZVmODft

O1ROjjLlliF51WQwHQYDVR0OBBYEFCNLqumKRlltPhDr5kfkDjTl+jcCMA4GA1UdDwEB/wQEAwIG

QDAfBgNVHSAEGDAWMAoGCGCEQgEaAQMCMAgGBgQAj3oBATA7BgNVHR8ENDAyMDCgLqAshipodHRw

Oi8vY3JsLmJ1eXBhc3NjYS5jb20vQlBDbDNDYUcyU1RCUy5jcmwwbwYIKwYBBQUHAQEEYzBhMCcG

CCsGAQUFBzABhhtodHRwOi8vb2NzcGJzLmJ1eXBhc3NjYS5jb20wNgYIKwYBBQUHMAKGKmh0dHA6

Ly9jcnQuYnV5cGFzc2NhLmNvbS9CUENsM0NhRzJTVEJTLmNlcjAlBggrBgEFBQcBAwQZMBcwFQYI

KwYBBQUHCwIwCQYHBACL7EkBAjANBgkqhkiG9w0BAQsFAAOCAgEA03rR/QRAXLiXmnUSU1agOREv

zrt9cv6Qv19nevwULAyRIm3OdhsENbfvBI5KIEMShPLAK5csSGo1AhT3I8MhNQ29IQb1SaGfsmlL

MEsywmGq63bGZlwljK1rc3ZFCIsJjzdUV16x3CYYxNm7pkIgMcl9Fv5ayfiwtm1pBb3KUEaOs4rp

nEd0L2q24eUjhLQjjExSLHPtQvsi09bzvUjD+0yyz+8nnBRyH6axk3Brcn2Ng4nKJ+Do/1La/dpw

YisJM+aVHD2tdIld+Opr0wOKX3tYSpRNQ3VfehN7U0oiQpTsdv4vkI63jj3q5q0M3tg7r+b7XKkN

LXsE/bqCAEZ3f9SYiimO6Sm56BnNm2Xzi7ACqcgh086/6kS1YC5eojYl9unrngWexwPG4uxZpjJi

BY4UpP15Os0vxMAQqHWLhfm+MObySEGd/+UwssM7XAVOsrcSP3MrB7AKaLRafrXbUrww/x80/Lrq

Y5Dg6RCiJlpPNl9TNOGvkubMEWaIjuWtiF1ONguymDXG6iHt/nvS/fIu/D1fKt//48gPB+fGJiPo

vCNmVASrHCR5nbJXvvvqfexHLKcpUo+ND0pYuLeE8e4K59JRXKAv/o2cFkJwEgKZEGNb5KdEhFW7

eRxUFMt/WBMkDH/zmzRtBCNd8GIo4ZC7EgqmapICD+/unjssq0Y=
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